
NEVADA STATE BOARD 
of 

DENTAL EXAMINERS 

Disciplinary Committee 
Teleconference Meeting 

April 16, 2020 

6:30 p.m. 

PUBLIC BOOK 



Dr. Georgene Chase 









Dr. Georgene Chase
Order of Suspension issued on 

November 16, 2018









Stipulation between the NSBDE 
and Georgene Chase, DDS 

approved on 10/03/2014



NEVADA STATE BOAR]) OF DENTAL EXAMINERS

NEVADA STATE BOARD OF

DENTAL EXAMINERS,

vs.

Complainant

GEORGENE B CHASE, DDS

Respondent,

)
)

)
)

)
)
)
)

)
)
)

‘1

CASE NO 74127-02697

ORDER OF REINSTATEMENT

On October 3, 2014, the Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners at a properly noticed

meeting approved the Disciplinary Stipulation II Agreement you entered into with the Board.

Pursuant to Paragraph 23 (H) you agreed to the suspension of your license to practice dentistry

in the State of Nevada for a period of thirty (30) days from the adoption of said agreement.

Effective November 3, 2014 your license to practice dentistry in the State of Nevada is hereby

reinstated to active status with a five (5) year probationary period as set forth in Paragraph 23

(A) of the Disciplinary Stipulation II Agreement

DATED this 3rd day of November, 2014

NEVADA

Executive Director

BOARD OF DENTAL EXAMINERS

Debra Shaffer

NEVADA STA TB SEAL



NEVADA STATE BOARD OF DENTAL EXAMINERS

NEVADA STATE BOARD OF )
DENTAL EXAMINERS, )

) CASE NO: 74127-02697
Complainant, )

)
vs. )

) ORDER OF SUSPENSION
GEORGENE B CHASE, DDS )

)
Respondent, )

___________________________________________________ )

On October 3, 2014, you entered into a Disciplinary Stipulation Agreement II with the Nevada State
Board of Dental Examiners. Pursuant to Paragraph 23(H) you agreed upon adoption of this Stipulation
Agreement II by the Board, your license to practice dentistry in the State of Nevada will be suspended for
a period of thirty (30) days.

Please be advised, upon receipt of substantial evidence that you have violated the terms of Paragraph
23(H), you agree your license to practice dentistry in the State of Nevada shall be automatically revoked
without any further action of the Board other than the issuance of an Order of Revocation by the
Executive Director. Thereafter, you may request in writing, a hearing before the Board to reinstate your
revoked license.

Therefore, pursuant to Paragraph 23(H) of your disciplinary stipulated agreement II, effective
immediately your license to practice dentistry is hereby suspended. You shall cease and desist from
practicing dentistry in the State of Nevada. Should you practice dentistry in this state, such actions
would violate this stipulation agreement II and shall be deemed as the ifiegal practice of dentistry as set
forth by NRS 631.395 and punishable criminally to the provisions of NRS 631.400.

After thirty (30) days, assuming you are in full compliance with all the terms and conditions of the
Stipulation Agreement II approved by the Board on October 3, 2014, your dental license wifi be activated
in accordance with the five (5) year probationary period.

DATED this 3rd day of October, 2014

NEVAD TATE BOARD OF DENTAL EXAMINERS

Nevada Stare Seal DEB SHAFFER-KUGEL, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR



—. .-.i :. j_—. .—:,--. i.-.r..

1 STATE OF NEVAT)A

2 BEFORE THE BOARD OF DENTAL EXAMINERS

3

~ NEVADA STATE BOARD OF DENTAL
EXAMINERS, Case No. 74127-02697

5

6 Complainant,
DISCIPLINARY STIPULATION II

7 VS. AGREEMENT

8 GEORGENE B. CHASE, DDS,

1~espondent.
10 ___________________________________

IT IS HEREBY STIPULATED AND AGREED by and between GEORGENE B.
12 CHASE, DDS (“Respondent” or “Dr. Chase”), by and through her attorneys, ANTHONY

13 LAURIA, ESQ. of the ~aw firm LAURIA TOKUNAGA GATES & L1NN, LLP and EUGENE J.

14 WAIT, JR., ESQ. of the WAIT LAW FIRM and the NEVADA STATE BOARD OF DENTAL

15 EXAMINERS (the “Board”), by and through DONNA JO BELLWINKEL, DDS, Disciplinary

16 Screening Officer (“DSO”), and the Board’s legal counsel, JOHN A. HUNT, ESQ., of the law

17 fim~ MORRIS, POLICH & PURDY, LLP as follows via this Disciplinary St~pulation H•

18 Agreement (“Stipulation Agreement,” “Stipulation Agreement II,” “Stipulation II,” or

19 “Stipulation”):

20 AUGUST 17. 2012. STIPULATIONAGREEMEAIT

21 1. Respondent entered into a prior Stipulation Agreement with the Board in ease no. 11-

22 02225 which was approved by the Board on August 17, 2012. In pertinent part, the August 17,

23 2012, Stipulation Agreement provides Disciplinary Screening Officer, Gregory Pisani, DDS,

24
found:

25

26 Respondent’s treatment of patient Jack Hanson resulted in a restorative failureMini-implants and composite crowns and/or bridges were used to increase vertical
27 {LV146063;I}

Page 1of27
28

500S.Ra,,tho Drive S~ilc 1 ~‘espondent’s initials Respondent’s attorney’s als
I



7 ~Ulfl 1 -— -. L

1

2

3

4

5

6,

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

•15

16

17

18

19~

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28
Morris Polici, & Purdy, LLP
500 S. Ráncho Drive, Suite 17
La, Vega,, Nevada 89106
Ph. (702) 862-8300

dimension and restore posterior occlusion. There is evidence of diagnosis,
treatment planning and restorative treatment below the standard of care resulting
in violation of NAC 531.230(1 )(c).

Id., at 2:9-13, at ¶ 3. Respondent admitted her treatment of patient Jack Hanson resulted in a

restorative failure in violation ofNRS 631.3475 (1) & (2). Id., at 2:14-19, at ¶ 4.

PATIENT, CANDACE SMART

2. Via a Notice of Complaint & Request for Records dated January 4, 2014, the Board

notified Respondent of a verified complaint received from Candace Smart. On February 27,

2014, the Board received Respondent’s written response (w/enclosures) dated February 24, 2014,

from her attorney, Anthony D. Lauria, Esq., in response to Ms. Smart’s verified complaint, a

copy of which was provided to Ms. Smart on February 28, 2014.~

3. Based upon the limited investigation conducted to date, DSO, Donna J. Hellwinkel, DDS,

finds the treatfflebt rendered to Ms. Smart was prior to the adoption of the Stipulation Agreement

approved by the Board on August 17, 2012. To resolve this pending matter, Respondent shall

reimburse Ms. Smart pursuant to the tern-is and conditions set forth in Paragraph 23M.

PATIENT. JOSE CHURRUCA

4. Via a Notice of Complaint & Request for Records dated January 4, 2014, the Board

notified Respondent of a verified complaint received from Jose Churruea. On February 28, 2014,

the Board received Respondent’s written response (w/enclosures) dated February 24, 2014, from

her attorney, Anthony D. Lauria, Esq., in response to Mr. Churruea’s verified complaint, a copy

of which was provided to Mr. Chunuea on February 28, 2014.

‘It is noted that with respect to each of the ten (10) patient verified complaints referenced hereip, Board counsel sent
a September 8, 2014, email to Respondent’s attorney confirming that the DSO and Respondent’s attorney’s office
each had identical copies of records received from Dr. Topham for each patient.
{Lv146o63;1}

Page 2 of 27

Respondent’s initials Respondent’s attorney’s



1

2 Based upon the limited investigation conducted to date, DSO, Donna J. Heliwinkel, DDS,

fmds for this matter and not for any other purpose, including any subsequent civil action,

Respondent violated the below referenced Nevada Revised Statutes (“NRS”) and/or Nevada

Administrative Code (“NAC”) provisions with respect to treatment rendered to patient, Jose
6 Churruca, as follows (matters noted below in sub-paragraphs A-F occurred before Dr. Chase

entered into the Stipulation Agreement (case 11-02225) approved by the Board on August 17,
8 2012):

9
A. Inappropriate use of mini implants, bone grafting, and unhygienic bulk composite

10 crowns and bridges as permanent fixed replacement of missing teeth #3,4,26, 28~ 29, 30,

11 and3l.NRS63I.3475ç1)&(2)

12 B. Subsequent failure of bone grafting, mini implant and implant supported

13 composite crown #26. NRS 631.3475 (1) & (2)

14 C. Failure to provide informed consent to patient regarding mini implants versus
standard implants. NRS 631.3475 (1) & (2)

15

16 D. False billing of composite crowns as implant supported porcelain or ceramiccrowns (teeth #3,4,26,28,29,30,31). NRS 631.348(6); NRS 631.3475 (1) & (2)
17

E. Restorative failure of Maryland bridge at teeth #25, 26, and 27 due to poor design,
18 poor retention and debonding. NRS 631.3475 (1) & (2)

19 F. Treatment records are insufficient, lacking diagnostic data and procedure detail.

20 NRS 631.3475 (1) & (2).

21 G. The following occurred after Dr. Chase entered into the Stipulation Agreement

22 (case 11-02225) approved by the Board on August 17, 2012, in violation of NRS
631.3475 (1) & (2):

1. Previously placed mini implant tooth #3 was replaced and subsequently
24 failed again due to unrecognized infection left from residual root tip #3.

25 2. No evidence of subsequent ridge augme6tation and sinus lift #3.

26
3. Tooth #3 restored with unhygienic plastic/composite crown with

27 {LV146063;I)

Page3of27 ,~
28 ___

~ Respondent’s initials Respondent’s attorney’s i4~i’s
Las Vegas~ Nevad& 89106 - k’A
Ph (702’ 862.8300



I.. .v.l ....f. 1~•••~• :4

I overhanging margins and excess cement imbedded in tissue causing gingival

2 inflammation, pain, and difficulty chewing.

3 4. False billing of healing cuff and plastic/composite crown as a
prefabricated abutment and an implant supported porcelain or ceramic crown (tooth #3).

4 NRS 631.348(6)

5. Failure to provide informed consent to patient regarding mini implants,
6 standard implants, ridge augmentation and sinus lift procedures.

7 6. Treatment records are insufficient, lacking diagnostic data and procedure

8 detail; specifically, there is no documentation for the sinus lift, ridge augmentation, andstandard implant done for tooth #3 on 7-31-13.
9

10 PATIENT. BILL KREJCI

6. Via a Notice of Complaint & Request for Records dated January 4, 2014, the Board

12 notified Respondent of a verified complaint received from Bill Krejci. On February 28, 2014, the

13 Board received Respondent’s written response (w/enclosures) dated February 24~ 2014, from her

14 attorney, Anthony D. Lauria, Esq., in response to Mr. K±ejci’s verified complaint, a copy of

~ which was provided to Mr. Krejci on March 4, 2014.

16
7. Based upon the limited investigation conducted to date, DSO, Donna J. Hellwinkel, DDS,

17
finds the treatment rendered to Mr. Krejei was prior to the adoption of the Stipulation Agreement

18
approved by the Board on August 17, 2012. To resolve this pending matter, Respondent shall

19
reimburse Mr. Krejei pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth in Paragraph 23.0.

20

21

22 PATIENT. BRIAN BANNERS

23 8. Via a Notice of Complaint & Request for Records dated January 17, 2014, the Board

24 notified Respondent of a verified complaint received from Brian Banners. On March 5,2014, the

25 Board received Respondent’s written response (w/enclosures) dated March 3, 2014, from her

26 attorney, Anthony D. Lauria, Esq., in response to Mr. Banners’ verified complaint, a copy of

27 {LV146063;j)

28~/4 Page4of27
~gr~is~PoH~ch & yI~LP Respondent’s initials Respondent’s attorney’s ials
Las Vegas, Nevada 89106
Ph flO2~ S62-S300



—-—..—---— .—.--—-.——-.—.——-———-—- .——.-—.—-—.---— ——— —--—- —.-.— ————-—-———.——--..-——-————-—-—.--.-————— ..--—-——...--—--—

4

which was provided to Mr. Banner on March 28, 2014. On or about July 14, 2014, the DSO

received records from Scott Redlinger, DMD, MD, regarding Mr. Banners. The DSO also

received records from Alan Topham, DDS regarding Mr. Banners.

12

28
Morris Pouch & Purdy, LLP
500 S. Rancho Drive, Suite I?
Las Vegas, Nevada 89106
Oh (IITSt Q~t51flfl

9. Based upon the limited investigation conducted to date, DSO, Donna J. Hellwinlcel, DDS,

finds for this matter and not for any other purpose, including any subsequent civil action,

Respondent violated the below referenced Nevada Revised Statutes (“NRS”) and/or Nevada

Administrative Code (“NAC”) provisions with respect to treatment rendered to patient, Brian

Banners, as follows (matters noted below in sub-paragraphs A-G occurred before Dr. Chase

entered into the Stipulation Agreement (case 11-02225) approved by the Board on August 17,

2012)

A. Inappropriate use of mini implants as permanent fixed rq5lacement of missing
teeth #3, 11, 13, and 14; subsequent failure of mini implants due to bone loss and
mobility. NRS 631.3475 (1) & (2)

B. Failure to provide informed consent to patient regarding mini implants versus
standard implants. NRS 631.3475 (1) & (2)

inflammation, pain, and difficulty chewing used as restoration of implants, both standard
and mini, teeth #2, 3, and 4. NRS 631.3475 (1) & (2)

D. False billing of plastic/composite crown over implant - #4 as a prefabricated
abutment. NRS 63 1.348(6); NRS 631.3475 (1) & (2)

I

2

3

5.

6

7

8

9

10

11

C. Unhygienic plastic/composite bridge

13,

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

with overhangs causing gingival

B. False billing of plastic/composite crown over standard implant #2 as an abthment,
PFM High noble metal. NRS 631.348(6); NRS 631.3475 (1) & (2)

G. Treatment records are insufficient, lacking diagnostic data and procedure detail,
including wrong tooth numbers used on 2-23-12. NRS 631.3475 (1) & (2)

H. The follOwing occurred after Dr. Chase entered into the Stipulation Agreement
(case 11-02225) approved by the Board on August 17, 2012, in violation of NRS
631.3475 (1) & (2):

{LV146063;1}
Page 5 Of 27

Respondent’s initials Respondent’s attorney’s mu



—...— ———...—.——.——~—.. ..........—.,..~ ......., —.———....

~•—•—— ‘ - 1.. —:1; r- I

1. Inappropriate use of mini implant and unhygienic plastic/composite crown
as permanent fixed replacement of missing tooth #5; subsequent failure of mini implant

2 and plastic/composite crown tooth #5

3
2. False billing of plastic/composite crown #5 as an implant supported

4 porcelain or ceramic crown.

3. Inappropriate placement of one mini implant as permanent fixed
6 replacement cif missing tooth #3 after previous 2 mini implants failed.

7 4. Placement of plastic/composite bridge as a permanent fixed bridge

8 supported by mini implants and standard implants teeth #11, 12, 13, and 14. Bridge lefttemporarily cemented.
9

5. False billing of plastic/composite bridge teeth #11, 12, 13, and 14 as
10 implant supported porcelainiceraniic crowns, porcelain fUsed to high noble pontic, and

11 prefabricated abutment. NRS631.348(6)

12 6. Insufficient treatment records, lacking diagnostic data, correct tooth
numbers, and procedure detail.

14 7. Abandonment of patient.

15 PATIENT, JAN THOMAS

16 10. Via a Notice of Complaint & Request for Records dated March 14, 2014, the Board

17 notified Respondent of a verified complaint received from Jan Thomas. On May 12, 2014, the

18 Board received Respondent’s written response (w/enclosures) dated May 7, 2014, from her

19 attorney, Paul A. Cardinale, Esq4 in response to Ms; Thomas’ verified complaint, a copy of

20 which was provided to Ms. Thomas on May 19, 2014. On August 12, 2014, the Board received

21 Ms. Thomas’ additional supplemental information regarding her xtrifled complaint, a copy of

22 which was provided Respondent on September 3, 20143. On August 14, 2014, the Board

23 received records from Drs. Corbridge and Patetta regarding Ms. Thomas, a copy of which were

24 provided to Respondent and Ms. Thomas on August 14, 2014.

25

26 11. Based upon the limited investigation conducted to date, DSO, Donna J. Heliwinkel, DDS,

27 {LV146063;1)

Page 6 of 27
28 ____

~ga~is~Pofl~ch PrO Respondent’s initials Respondent’s
Las Vegas, Nevada 89106
Ph. (702) 862-8300 Mi —



1 finds the treatment rendered to Ms. Thomas was prior to the adoption of the Stipulation

2 Agreement approved by the Board on August 17, 2012. To resolve this pending matter,

Respondent shall reimburse Ms. Thomas pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth in

Paragraph 23.Q.
5

6
PATIENT. MAE McMAHEL

7

8 12. Via a Notice of Complaint & Request for Records dated February 5, 2014, the Board
notified Respondent of a verified complaint received from Mae McMahel. On March 24, 2014,

10 the Board received Respondent’s written response (w/enclosures) dated March 18, 2014, from

11 her attorney, Anthony D. Lauria, Esq., in response to Ms. McMahel’s verified complaint, a copy
of which was provided to Ms. McMahel on March 28, 2014. The DSO received certain records

12

13 from Dr. Redlinger and Dr. Topham regarding Ms. McHahel.

14 13. Based uponthe limited investigation conducted to date, DSO, Donna J. Heliwinkel, DDS,

15 finds for this matter and not for any other purpose, including any subsequent civil action,

16 Respondent violated th~ below referenced Nevada Revised Statutçs (“NRS”) and/or Nevada

17 Administrative Code (“NAC”) provisions with respect to treatment rendered to patient, Mae

18 McMahel, as follows (the following occurred after Dr. Chase entered into the Stipulcition

19 Agreement (case 11-02225) approved by the Board on August 17, 2012):

20
A. Bone grafting, attempting to vertically add bone around standard implants #18,

21 19, and 20 utilizing an unsupported titanium mesh hardware without securing screws,
that resulted iii failure of the bone graft, nerve damage, and lower lip paresthesia, pain,

22 difficulty chewing and additional bone loss around implants. NRS 631.3475 (1) & (2)

23
B. Failure to obtain informed consent for bone grafting procedure #18, 19, and 20.

24 NRS 631.3475 (1) Sc (2)

25 C. No documentation of surgical procedure of bone grafting done 11-16-13 in

26 patient’s treatment record. NRS 631.3475 (1) Sc (2)

27 {LV146063;1}
Page 7 of 27

28 •~

~ Yt’-~ Respondent’s initials Respondent’s attorney’s in ‘al

“ ‘ -



1 D. No docuMentation of any post operative care given to patient in treatment record.

2 NRS 631.3475 (1) & (2)

3

4 PATIENT, JACOTJEL1NE CALVERT
14. Via a Notice of Complaint & Request for Records dated March 14, 2014, the Board

6 notified Respondent of a verified complaint received from Jacqueline Calvert2. On June 2, 2014,
the Board received Respondent’s written response (w/enclosures) dated May 28, 2014, from her

8 attorney, Paul 4. Cardinale, Esq., in response to Ms. Cafvert’s verified complaint, a copy of
which was provided to Ms. Calved on June 3, 2014. The DSO received certain records from Pius

10 Orthodontics and Dr. Topham regarding Jacqueline Calvert.

11

12 15. Based upon the limited investigation conducted to date, DSO, Donna S. Hellwinkel, DDS,

13 finds for this matter and not for any other purpose, including any subsequent civil action,

14 Respondent violated the below referenced Nevada Revised Statutes (“NRS”) and/or Nevada

15 Administrative Code (“NAC”) provisions with respect to treatment rendered to patient,

16 Jacqueline Calved, as follows (the following occurred after Dr. Chase entered into the

17 Stipulation Agreement (case 11 ..02225) approved by the Board on August 17, 2012):

18 A. Failure to obtain diagnostic orthodontic records that would include the following:

I initial exam describing profile, mandibular plane angle, lip posture and competence,incisal exposure at rest and on smiling, incisor length, midlines, smile arc, classification
20 of occlusion, overj et, overbite, crowding of upper and lower arches, teeth pres’ent and

missing, oral hygiene, gingival health and periodontal status, maximum opening, TMJ
21 findings and any other special problems; panoramic radiograph; cephalometric

22 radiograph with tracing and analysis; study models; intra oral photographs; extra oralphotographs. NRS 631.3475 (1) & (2)
23

B. Failure to make a diagnostic summary, treatment objective, and detailed treatment
24 plah outlining the steps of treatment and estimated treatment time. NRS 631.34750) &

25 (2)

26
2 The Notice incorrectly listed the patient’s name as Jennifer Calvert.

27 {LV146063;1)

28 PageS of27
~ Respondent’s initials Respondent’s attorney’s in4jal

Las Vàa~ Nevada B9106 1) i.e



—.

1
C. Failure to refer patient to periodontist to determine risks and liabilities of

2 undertaking orthodontic treatment when periodontal disease is evident. NRS 631.3475 (1)

&(2)

4 D. Failure to recognize that this ease is beyond the scope of a generalist’s training
and ability. NRS 631.3475 (1) & (2)

6 E. Failure to adequately document “primary palatal suture osteotomy” surgical
procedure done Oct. 25, 2013. No diagnosis or treatment explanation is given. There is

7 no evidence that this surgical procedure was necessary. NRS 631.3475 (1) & (2)

8 F. Palatal expander placed for three years with a minimal total expansion of 2 mm. If

9 such expansion was necessary it should have been done as a surgically assisted rapid
expansion. NRS 631.3475 (1) & (2)

10

11 0. There is no charting of arch wire sizes, wire changes, direction of force and elastic
wear, e-chain directions, changes in over jet and over bite at each appointment in a period

12 of three years of orthodontic treatment. NRS 631.3475 (1) & (2)

13 H. Abandonment of patient. NRS 631.3475 (1) & (2)

14

15 PATIENT. QUINN ORENSTEIN

16 16. Via a Notice of Complaint & Request for Records dated May 3, 2014, the Board notified

17 Respondent of a verified complaint received from Jeremy Orenstein regarding the minor child

18 Quinn Orenstein. On June 24, 2014, the Board received Respondent’s written response

19 (w/enclosures) dated June 19, 2014, from her attorney, Paul A. Cardinale, Esq., in response to

20 the verified complaint regarding Quinn Orenstein, a copy of which was provided to Jeremy

21 Orenstein on June 26, 2014. The DSO received certain records from Pills Orthodontics and Dr.

22 Topham regarding Quinn Orenstein.

23

24 17. Based upon the limited investigation conducted to date, DSO, Donna J. Hellwinkel, DDS,

25 finds for this matter and not for any other purpose, including any subsequent civil action,

26 Respondent violated the below referenbed Nevada Revised Statutes (“NRS”) and/or Nevada

27 {LV146063;1J

28 Page9of27
~ Respondent’s initials Respondent’s

141 Vqii,Nevidi1P106 thJ4.



— -... -...-... . ....1 —. ——.-... .. .. ... .... -— -. •.~ ..~• —. .1 — ....

1 Administrative Code (“NAC”) provisions with respect to treatment rendered to patient, Quinn

2 Orenstein, as follows (the following occurred after Dr. Chase entered into the Stipulation

Agreement (case 11-02225) approved by the Board on August 17, 2012):
4 -

A. Failure to obtain diagnostic records that would include the following: initial exam
describing profile, mandibular plane, lip posture and competence, incisal exposure at rest

6 and on smiling, incisor length, midlines, smile arc, classification of occlusion, over jet,
overbite, crowding of upper and lower arches, teeth present and missing, oral hygiene,

7 gingival health, periodontal status, maximum opening, TMJ findings, and any other
special problems; panoramic radiograph; cephalometric radiograph with tracing and

8 analysis; study models; intra oral photographs; e*tra oral photographs. NRS 631.3475 (1)

9 &(2)

10 B. Failure to make a diagnostic summary, treatment objectives and detailed

11 treatment plan outlining the steps of treatment to correct Class II malocclusion and aretrognathic mandible and estimated treatment time. NRS 631.3475 (1) & (2)
12

C. Failure to recognize the skeletal problem of severe retrognathia. NRS 631.3475
13 (Q&(2)

14 D. There is no charting of arch wire sizes,wire changes, direction of force and elastic

15 wear, e-chain directions, changes in over jet and over bite and other documentation of
treatment progress at each appointment in a period of 10 months. NRS 631.3475 (1) &

16 (2)

17 E. Failure to provide appliances to correct mandibular growth during patient’s

18 growth phase. NRS 631.3475 (1) & (2)

19 F. Abandonment of patient. NRS 631.3475 (1) & (2)

20

21 PATIENT, JAMB GROSJEAN

22 18. Via a Notice of Complaint & Request for Records dated May 3, 2014, the Board notified

23 Respondent of a verified complaint received from Jamie Grosjean. On June 23, 2014, the Board

24 received Respondent’s written response (w/enclosures) dated June 19, 2014, from her attorney,

25 Paul A. Cardinale, Esq., in response to Ms. Grosjean’s verified complaint, a copy of which was

26 provided to Ms. Grosjean on June 26, 2014. The DSO received certain records froth Dr. Topham

27 {LV146063;l}

28~j’d~ PagelOof27
Morris Pouch ~ Respondent’s initials Respondent’s attorney’s tfa(s
Las Vesas, Nevada 89106
h. nail iae~aa A -



I -. -- - .r- -1

27~

28~
Morris Pouch & Purdy, LLP
500 S. Rancho Drive, Suite I?
Las Vegas, Nevada 89106
Ph. (702) 862-8300

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

regarding Ms. Grosjean.

19. Based upon the limited investigation conducted to date, DSO, Donna J. Heliwinicel, DDS,

finds for this matter and not for any other purpose, including any subsequent civil action,

Respondent violated the below referenced Nevada Revised Statutes (“NRS”) and/or Nevada

Administrative Code (“NAC”) provisions with respect to treatment rendered to patient, Jamie

~rosj ean, as follows (the following occurred after Dr. Chase entered into the Stipulation

Agreement (case 1 1-02225).approved by the Board on August 17, 2012):

A. Inappropriate use of mini implant as permanent fixed replacement of missing
tooth #7. MRS 631.3475(1) & (2) -

B. Placement of bulk, unhygienic composite as a temporary implant supported crown
for missing tooth #7. NRS 631.3475 (1) & (2)

C. Inappropriate use of mini implants as permanent fixed replacement of missing
teeth #28, 29, and 30. NRS 631.3475 (1) & (2)

D. Placement of plastic bridge that is unhygienic with overhanging margins
impinging on tissue, causing gingival inflammation, pain, and difficulty chewing, as a
permanent implant supported bridge for missing teeth #28, 29, and 30. NRS 631.3475 (1)
&(2)

E. Failure to provide informed consent to patient regarding mini implants vs
standard implants. NRS 631.3475 (1) & (2)

F. False billing of plastic bridge #28, 29, and 30 as implant supported
porcelain/ceramic crowns. NRS 631.3475 (1) & (2)

G. Failure to evaluate and treat gingival and periodontal condition. MRS 631.3475
(1)&(2)

H. No periodontal charting done; no periodontal diagnosis made. NRS 631.3475 (1)
&(2)

I. Failure to diagnose chronic periodontal/endodontic abscess and poor crown/root
ratio condition for tooth #8. Root canal therapy done on tooth #8 despite a poor
prognosis. MRS 631.3475 (1) & (2)

{LV146063;I}

Page 11 of27

Respondent’s initials Respondent’s

0kv



I....- ..“....-...—-......

1
J. Failure to provide informed consent to patient regarding endodontic therapy tooth

2 #8.NRS 631.3475 (1)&(2)

3
K. Abandonment of patient. NRS 631.3475 (1) & (2)

4

5

6 PATIENT. EDWARI~ HARRIS

20. Via a Notice of Complaint & Request for Records dated August 21, 2014, the Board
8 notified Respondent of a verified complaint received from Edward Harris. On September 19,

2014, the Board received Respondent’s written response (w/enclosures), from her attorney, Paul
10 Cardinale, Esq., in response to Mr. Harris’ verified complaint, a copy of which was provided to

11
Mr. Hams on September 19, 2014.

12

13 21. Based upon the limited investigation conducted to date, DSO, Donna J. Hellwinkel, LiDS,

14 finds for this matter and not for any other purpose, including any subsequent civil action,

15 Respondent violated the below referenced Nevada Revised Statutes (“NRS”) and/or Nevada

16 Administrative Code (“NAC”) provisions with respect to treatment rendered to patient, Edward

17 Harris, as follows (the following occurred after Dr. Chase entered into the Stipulation Agreement

18 (case 11-02225) apptoved by the Board on August 17, 2012):

19

2 A. Removed pontic #30 from adequate three unit fixed bridge #29, 30, and 31 and0 replaced with two mini implants which failed (bone loss and mobility) 5 months after

21 placement. NRS 631.3475 (1)&(2)

22 B. Placement of unhygienic plastic/composite crown over mini implants #30. NRS

23 631.3475(l)&(2)

24 C. False billing of plastic/composite crown #30 as implant supported porcelain or
ceramic crown. NRS 63 1.348(6); NRS 631.3475 (1) & (2)

25

26 D. Failure to recognize, diagnose, and treat abscessed tooth #29 within the standard
of care. NRS 631.3475 (1) cIt (2)

27 {LV146063;I)

Page 12 of 27
€1,

500SRancho~ Respondent’s initials Respondent’s
Las Vegas, Nevada 89106
Pta. (702) 862-8300
v.~ l7flPb gAO_SaWs



I— ~ -I —...- .. . r. 1; .r

1

2 E. Use of.an ozone generator, a medical device not approved for use by the Food andDrug administration. NRS 631.3475 (1) & (2)

3
F. Injection of “ozone” to treat infection and abcess #29. The use of ozone for

4 medical or dental treatment is not approved by the FDA. NRS 631.3475 (1) & (2)

G. Failure to provide informed consent for mini implants vs standard implants. NRS
6 631.3475 (1) & (2)

7 H. Failure to provide informed consent for the use of ozone. NRS 631.3475 (1) & (2)

9 22. Respondent, acknowledges the fmdings of the DSO, Donna J. Heliwinkel, DDS,

10 contained in Paragraph 3 (re: Patient, Candace Smart), Paragraph 5 (re: Patient, Jose

11 Churruca), Paragraph 7 (re: Patient, Bill Krejci); Paragraph 9 (re: Patient, Brian Banners),

t2 Paragraph 11 (re: Patient, Jan Thomas), Paragraph 13 (re: Patient, Mae McMahel),

13 Paragraph 15 (re: Patient, Jacqueline CalverQ, Paragraph 17 (re: Patient, Quinn Orenstein),

14 Paragraph 19 (re: Patient, Jamie Gtosjean), and Paragraph 21 (re: Patient, Edward Harris) and

15 admits for this matter and not for any other purpose, including any subsequent civil action if this

16 matter were to proceed to a fill board hearing, a sufficient quantity and/or quality of evidence

17 could be proffered sufficient to meet a preponderance of the evidence standard of proof

18 demonstrating Respondent violated the statutory and regulatory provisions noted above in

19 Paragraphs 3,5, 7,9, 11, 13, 15, 17, 19, and 21.

20

21 23. Based upon the limited investigation conducted to date, the findings of the Disciplinary

22 Screening Officer; and the admissions by Respondegit contained in Paragraph 22 above, the

23 parties have agreed to resolve the pending investigations pursuant to the following disciplinary

24 terms and conditions:

25 A. Pursuant to NRS 631.350(1 )(d)Qi), Respondent shall be placed on probation and her

26 dental practice shall be supervised for a period of five (5) years from the adoption of this
Sti~ulation II. During the five (5) year probationary period, Respondent shall allow

27 {LV146063;I}
Pagel3of27 j

28 4?~W
DH%SUhfl Respondent’s initials Respondent’s attorney’s ini~V

Lu Yqu, Nivi~i 1P106



—. —---•v• ~••••1• —.r—:.;I”— -— ----s.—- — —f

either the Executive Director of the Board and/or the agent appointed by the Executive
Director Of the Board to inspect Respondent’s records during normal business houiFs to

2 insure compliance of this Stipulation II. During the five (5) probationary period,

3 Respondent’s practice shall be supervised and monitored regarding those patients who
received dental treatments, including but not limited to patients who receive root canals,

4 crowns, orthodontics and/or bridges, implants or mini-implants (surgical Or prosthetic)

5 treatment(s). Such supervision and mohitoring shall include, but will not be limited to,personally observing the treatment rendered to those patients who receive root canals,
6 crowns and/or bridges, implants or mini-implant (surgical or prosthetic) treatment(s).

Respondent shall not perform orthodontics, implants or mini-implants (surgical or
7 prosthetic) treatment(s) until after Respondent complies with supplemental education

8 provisions contained in Paragraphs 23E and 23F of this Stipulation II. Respondent furtheracknowledges the Disciplinary Screening Officer and or an agent appointed by the
9 Executive Director may contact patient(s) who receive root canals, crowns, orthodontics

and/or bridges, implants or mini-implants (surgical or prosthetic) treatment(s).
10

11 B. In the event Respondent no longer practices dentistry in the State of Nevada prior to
completion of the above-referenced five (5) years probationary period, thç probationary

12 period shall be tolled. In the event the probationary period is tolled because Respondent
does not practice in the State of Nevada and the terms and conditions of this Stipulation

13 Agreement are not satisfied (i.e., including completion of the probationary period) within

14 six (6) years of adoption of this Stipulation Agreement by the Board, Respondent agrees
his license to practice dentistry in Nevada will be deemed voluntarily surrendered with

15 disciplinary action. Thereafter the Board’s Executive Director without any further action
or hearing by the’ Board shall issue an Order of ‘Voluntary Surrender with disciplinary

16 action and report same to the National Practitioners Data Banlc.

17 C. Pursuant to NRS 631.350(l)(d), Respondent further agrees during the above-referenoed

18 (5) year probationary period wherein Respondent is practicing dentistry in the State of
Nevada, Respondent’s patient files shall include (in addition to any other matters

19 generally required of a patient file) patient signed informed consents regarding implant

20 treatment(s), both surgical and prosthetic (said informed consent shall be comprehensive
and include diEcussion of mini versus standard implants, treatment by a general dentist

21 versus a specialist, and types of dental materials used in fabrication of crowns and
bridges and removable iirosthetics). In addition, Respondent’s treatment records of

22 implant restored patients shall include diagnostic data, comprehensive treatment planning

23 and documentation of all steps and procedures taken in the delivery, of implants and
implant supported prosthetics. Moreover, Respondent’s patient files for orthodontic

24 patients shall include a signed comprehensive informed consent including a discussion of

25 treatment of a general dentist versus a specialist, orthodontic diagnostic records, adiagnostic summary, treatment objective, detailed treatment plan outlining steps of
26 treatirient and estimated treatment time, and periodontal evaluation, diagnosis, and

treatment plan. Subsequent orthodontic treatment must be comprehensively documented
27 {LV146063;i}

Page 14 of 27
28j’4j

~~ Respondent’s initials Respondent’s attorney’s m
Las Vegas, Nevada 89506
Ph. (702) 862-8300
r.~ t7fl~; as,_a4nn



I.—. ••~~.•— ....I.—.. ...— .1..-.—...—— - .-..-_LJ—.-. ••-—•-—-••r -.

to include all procedures done, types of appliances used, types of arch wires used, wire

2 changes, elastics used, etc. With regards to the just referenced patient file and consentform requirements (hereinafter collectively “Patient File Requirements”), Respondent

3 acknowledges failure to comply with the same shall be an admission of unprofessional
conduct. In addition, failure to maintain and/or provide the Patient File Requirements

4 upon request by an agent of the ~oard shall be an admission of unprofessional conduct.
Upon receipt of substantial evidence that Respondent has either failed to comply with the
Patient File Requirements, failed to maintain or has refused to provide the Patient File

6 Requirements upon request by an agent assigned by the Executive Director, or
Respondent has refused to provide copies of patient records requested by the agent

7 assigned by the Executive Director, Respondent agrees her license to practice dentistry in

8 the State of Nevada shall be automatically suspended without any further action of theBoard other than the issuance of an Order of Suspension by the Executive Director.
9 Thereafter, Respondent may request, in writing, a hearing before the Board to reinstate

Respondent’s license. However, prior to a full Board hearing, Respondent waives any
10 right to seek judicial review, including injunctive relief from any court of competent

11 jurisdiction, including a Nevada Federal District Court or Nevada State District Court to
reinstate her privilege to practice dentistry in the State of Nevada pending a final Board
hearing. Respondent shall also be responsible for any costs or attorney’s fees incurred in
the event the Board has to seek injunctive relief to prevent Respondent from practicing

13 dentistry during the period Respondent’s license is automatically suspended.

14 D. Pursuant to NRS 631.3 50(l)(d), Respondent further agrees during thefl above-referenced

15 five (5) year probationary period wherein Respondent is practicing dentistry in the State
of Nevada, Respondent shall maintain a daily log containing the following information

16 for any patient(s) who receive root canals, crowns, orthodontics and/or bridges, implants

17 or mini-implants (surgical or prosthetic) treatment(s):

18 1. Name of patient
2. Date treatment commenced

19 3. Explanation of treatment

20 . 4. Pre and Post radiOgraphs
5. Pre and Post Orthodontic models

21

22 The daily log shall be made available during normal business hours withou~t notice. Inaddition, during the above-referenced five (5) year probationary period, Respondent shall
23 mail to the Board no later than the fifth (5th) day of the month a copy of the daily log(s)

for the preceding calendar month (for example: by May 5, Respondent shall mail t~ the
24 Boai~d a copy of daily log(s) for the month of April) (hereinafter “monthly log mailing

25 requirement”). Respondent acknowledges failure to comply with the monthly log mailingrequirement shall be an admission of unprofessional conduct. In addition, failure to
26 maintain and/or provide the daily log upon request by an agent of the Board shall be an

admission of Unprofessional conduct. Upon receipt of substantial evidence that
27 {LV146063;1) -

28 ,4s. PagelSof27 _~;~;;pi/ch
~ Respondent’s initials Respondent’s attorney’s m ial
Las Vegas Nas~ada 89106
Ph. (702) 862-8300 -



1 Respondent has either failed to comply with the monthly log mailing requirement, failed
to maintain or has refused to provide the daily log upon request by an agent assigned by

2 the Executive Director, or Respondent has refused to provide copies of patient rdcords

3 requested by the agent assigned by the Executive Director, Respondent agrees her license
to practice dentistry in the State of Nevada shall bó automatically suspended without any

4 further action of the Board other than the issuance of an Order of Suspension by the

5 Executive Director. Thereafter, Respondent may request, in writing, a hearing before theBoard to reinstate Respondent’s license. However, prior to a full Board hearing,
6 Respondent waives any right to seek judicial review, including injunctive relief from any

court of competent jurisdiction, including a Nevada Federal District Court or Nevada
7 State District Court to reinstate her privilege to practice dentistry in the State of Nevada

8 pending a final Board hearing. Respondent shall also be responsible for any costs orattorney’s fees incurred in the event the Board has to seek injunctive relief to prevent
9 Respondent from practicing dentistry during the period Respondent’s license is

automatically sus~5ended.
10

E. Pursuant to NRS 631 .350(l)(f) and (1)(k), Respondent agrees she shall not practice
orthodontics until she successfully completes a hands-on forty (40) hours continuing

12 education course in orthodontics and provides written evidence of such completion tO the
Board’s Executive Director. Information, documents, and!or description of supplemental

13 education must be submitted in writing to the Executive Director of the Board for

14 approval prior to attendance. Upon receipt of the written request tq attend a hands-on
forty (40) hours continuing education course in orthodontics, the Executive Director of

15 the Board shall notify Respondent in writing wheth& the requested course is approved
for attendance. The cost associated with the hands-on forty (40) hours continuing

16 education course in orthodontics shall be paid by Respondent. Respondent acknowledges

17 failure to comply with paragraph’s requirements shall be an admission of unprofessional
• conduct. Upon receipt of substantial evidence that Respondent has violated the terms of

18 this paragraph before successfully completing a hand-on forty’ (40) hours continuing
course in orthodontics), Respondent agrees her license to practice dentistry in the State of

• 19 Nevada shall be auto~natica11y suspended without any further action of the Board other

20 than the issuance of an Order of Suspension by the Executive Director. Thereafter,
Respondent may request, in writing, a hearing before the Board to reinstate Respondent’s

21 license. However, prior to a fUll Board hearing, Respondent waives any right to seek
judicial review, including injunctive relief from any court of competent juiisdiction,

22 including a Nevada Federal District Court or Nevada State District Court to reinstate her

23 privilege to practice dentistry in the State of Nevada pending a final Board hearing.
Respondent shall also be responsible for any costs or attorney’s fees incurred in the event

24 the Board has to seek injunctive relief to prevent Respondent from practicing dentistry

25 during the period Respondent’s license is automatically suspended.

26 F. Pursuant to MRS 631.350(l)(f) and (1)ck), Respondent agrees she shall not provide any
implant placement treatment(s) (whether surgical or prosthetic) until she successfully

27 {LV146063;1)

~ Pagel6of27
~gzas~aI.~h &~ard~.LLP Respondent’s initials Respondent’s attorney’s inhta(s//
L~, Vega,, Nevada 89106
Ph. (702) fl24300



Lz:_zzzzzzzz zzzz:zz.Zzzz:ZZzzzJzzz:zzz:zzzr~.

completes a hands-on forty (40) hours continuing education course in and provides
written evidence of such completion to the Board’s Executive Director. Information,

2 documents, andlor description of supplemental education must be submitted in writing to

the Executive Director of the Board for approval prior to attendance. Upon receipt of the
written request to attend a hands-on forty (40) hours cdntinuing education course in

4 implant placement treatment(s) (whether surgical or prosthetic), the Executive Director of
the Board shall notif~’ Respondent in writing whether the requested course is approved
for attendance. The cost associated with the hands-on forty (40) hours continuing

6 education courses in implant placement treatment(s) (whether surgical or prosthetic) shall
be paid by Respondent. Respondent acknowledges failure to comply with paragraph’s

7 requirements shall be an admission of unprofessional conduct. Upon receipt of substantial

8 evidence that Respondent has violated the terms of this paragraph before successfullycompleting a hand-on forty (40) bows continuing course in implant placement
9 treatment(s) (whether surgical or prosthetic), Respondent agrees her license to practice

dentistry in the State of Nevada shall be automatically suspended without any further
10 action of the Board other than the issuance of an Order of Suspension by the Executive

11 Director. Thereafter, Respondent may request, in writing, a hearing before the Board to
reinstate Respondent’s license. However, prior to a full Board hearing, Respondent

12 waives any right to seek judicial review, including injunctive relief from any court of
competent jurisdiction, including a Nevada Federal District Court or Nevada State

13 District Court to reinstate her privilege to practice dentistry in the State of Nevada

14 pending a final Board hearing. Respondent shall also be responsible for any costs or
attorney’s fees incurred in the event the Board has to seek injunctive relief to prevent

15 Respondent from practicing dentistry during the period Respondent’s license is

16 automatically suspended. .

17 0. Pursuant to NRS 631.350(l)(b), Respondent further agrees during the above-referenced
five (5) year probationary period wherein Respondent is practicing dentistry in the State

18 of Nevada, Respondent agrees she shall cease and desist from using any ozone
generating device in an)’ dental or dental hygiene related treatment and/or providing any

19 ozone treatment(s) and/or any other therapies which are not approved by the Federal

20 Drug Administration in any dental or dental hygiene related treatment. Respondent
acknowledges failure to comply with this paragraph’s shall be deemed an admission of

21 unprofessional conduct. Upon receipt of substantial evidence that Respondent has
violated the terms of this paragraph, Respondent agrees her license to practice dentistry in

22 the State of Nevada shall be automatically. suspcnded without any fUrther action of the

23 Board other than the issuance of an Order of Suspension by the Executive Director.
Thereafter, Respondent may request, in writing, a hearing before the Board to reinstate

24 Respondent’s license. However, prior to a full Board hearing, Respondent waives any

25 right to seek judicial review, including injunctive relief from any court of competentjurisdiction, including a Nevada Federal District Court or Nevada State District Court to
26 reinstate her privilege to practice dentistry in the State of Nevada pending a .fmal Board

hearing. Respondent shall also be responsible for any cbsts or attorney’s fees incurred in
27 {LV146063;1

28~e~.L_. . Pagel7of27
~ Respondent’s initials Respondent’s attorney’s i ml

Las Vegas. Nevada S9~06
Ph. (702) 862.8300



I the event the Board has to seek injunctive relief to prevent Respondent from practicing

2 dentistry during the period Respondent’s license is automatically suspended.

H. Pursuant to NRS 631 .350(1’)(d), Respondent further agrees upon adoption of this
Stipulation Agreement II by the Board, Respondent’s license to practice dentistry in the

4 State of Nevada will be suspended for a period of thirty (30) days. Upon receipt of
substantial evidence that Respondent has violated the terms of this paragraph,
Respondent agrees her license: to practice dentistry in the State of Nevada shall be
automatioally revoked without any further action of the Board other than the issuanóe of
an Order of Revocation by the Executive Director. Thereafter, Respondent may request,

7 in writing, a hearing before the Board to reinstate Respondent’s revoked license.

8 However, prior to a full Board hearing, Respondent waives any right to seek judicialreview, including injunctive relief from any court of competent jurisdiction, including a
9 Nevada Federal District Court or Nevada State District Court to reinstate her privilege to

practice dentistry in the State of Nevada pending a final Board hearing. Respondent shall
10 also be responsible for any costs or attorney’s fees incurred in the event the Board has to

11 seek injunctive relief to prevent Respondent from practicing dentistry during the period
Respondent’s license is automatically revoked.

12
I. Respondent agrees that during the above-referenced five (5) year probationary period in

13 the event the Board notifies Respondent of any additional verified complaint(s) which

14 relate(s) to treatment rendered prior to the adoption by the Board of this Stipulation II,
such complaint(s) shall be processed pursuant to the following terms ad conditions:

15
Upon Respondent receiving notice of a verified complaint(s) and subsequent to

16 answering the complaint, Respondent agrees to comply with the decision rendered by the

17 Board’s assigned Disciplinary Screening Officer with respect to reimbursement of a
complaint which relates to treatment received prior to adoption by the Board of this

18 Stipulation II in an amount, if any, for the services rendered by Respondent. The
reimbursement amount must be based upon written proof of payment by the complainant

19 including, but not limited to, insurance payments made on the complainant’s behalf.

20 Payment shall be made within sixty (60) days of the Disciplinary Screening Officer’s
written decision. Subject to Respondent’s reimbursement of the complainant, the Board

21 agrees not to initiate disciplinary action against Respondent. Respondent waives any right
to appeal the Disciplinary Screening Officer’s decision regarding reimbursement of a

22 complainant to either the Board, Federal District Court, or State of Nevada District Court

23 regarding the decided amount(s) for reimbursement(s). Should Respondent fail to
reimburse patients of verified complaints as ordered by the Disciplinary Screening

24 Officer within sixty (60) days of the Disciplinary Screening Officer written decision

2 regarding to the san*, the Board’s Executive Director without any ftrther action orhearing by the Board shall issue an Order of Voluntary Surrender with disciplinary action
26 and itport same to the National Practitioners Data Banic. Respondent agrees to waive any

right to seek injunctive relief from any Federal or State of Nevada District Court
27 {LV146063;i} -

Page 18 of 27
28~fj -.

~g°~?Y~’-’~ Respondent’s initiaJs Respondent’s attorney’s it 5
Las Vegas, Nevada 89106
Ph. (702) 862-8300



1 regarding the Board’s Executive Director’s Order of Voluntary Surrender with
disciplinary action and reporting same to the National Practitioners Data Bank.

2 Respondent shall also be responsible for any costs or attorney’ s fees incurred in the event

the Board has to seek injunctive relief to enforce the Board’s Executive Director’s Order
of Voluntary Surrender with disciplinary action to prevent Respondent from practicing

4 dentistry in the State of Nevada. Any verified complaints or authorized investigative

5 complaints which relate te tteatment received subsequent to the adoption of thisStipulation II shall be processed pursuant to the procedures set forth at NRSand/or NAC
6 chapter 631 and/or NRS and NAC chapter 233B.

7 J. Pursuant to NRS 631.350(l)(e), Respondent agrees upon adoption of the Stipulation

8 Agreement II by the Board this Stipulation Agreemcnt II shall be deemed a publicreprimand.
9

K. Pursuant to NRS 631.350(1)(c), Respondent agrees within thirty (30) days after adoption
10 of this Stipulation Agreement II, Respondent shall pay a fine in the amount of One

11 Thousand and xx/1 00 Dollars ($1,000.00). Payment shall be made payable to the Nevada
State Board of Dental Examiners and mailed directly to 6010 S. Rainbow Blvd., Suite

12 Al, Las Vegas, Nevada 89118.

13 L. Pursuant to NRS 622.400, Respondent agrees to reimburse the Board for the cost of the

14 investigations and cost associated in enforcing the terms and conditions of probation in
the amount of Twenty-Seven Thousand Two Hundred Fifty and xx/100 Dollars

15 ($27,250.00). Payment shall be made payable to the Nevada State Board of Dental
Examiners and mailed directly to 6010 5. Rainbow Blvd., Suite Al, Las Vegas, Nevada

16 89118. Payment shall be made in Forty-Eight (48) monthly payments. The first forty

17 seven (47) payments shall be in the amount of $579.00. The first payment shall be made
on the fifteen (1 5th) day of the month after which this Stipulation II is approved by the

18 Board (for example, if this Stipulation His approved by the Board on November 10, then
the first payment of $579.00 shall be due on December 15). The remaining forty-six (46)

19 equal payments shall then be due on the fifteenth (15th) day of each month thereafter.

20 The last and forty-eighth (48th) payment shall be in the amount of $37.00 and shall be
made on the fifteenth (15th) day of the month.

21
M. Pursuant to NRS 631.350(1)0), Respondent agrees to reimburse Candace Smart in the

22 amount of Four Thousand Eight Hundred Fifty-One and xx/100 Dollars ($4,851.09)

23 relative to matters addressed above regarding Ms. Smart. Respondent shall also Waive
any ~balance, if any, and withdraw any and all collection efforts, if any such efforts have

24 been initiated. Payment of the $4,851.00 shall be made shall be made in twelve (12)

25 equal monthly payments. The first payment shall be made on the fifteen (15th) day of themonth after which this Stipulation II is approved by the BOard (for example, if this
26 Stipulation II is approved by the Board on November 10, then the first of the twelve

equal monthly payments shall be due on Decethber 15). The remaining eleven equal
27 {LV146063;J}

Page 19 of 27
28Jflg,

~~ Respondent’s initials Respondent’s attorney’s mi s
L~, Vegas, Nevada 89W6 -

Ph. (702) 862.8300 - . —-



1 payments shall then be due on the fifteenth (I 5th) day of each month thereafter.
Respondent shall deliver/mail to the Board (6010 S. Rainbow Blvd., Suite Al, Las

2 Vegas, Nevada 89118) the payment checks made payable to Candace Smart.

3
N. Pursuant to NRS 631 .350(1)(1), Respondent agrees to reimburse Jose Churruca in the

4 amount of Thirteen Thousand Nine Hundred Thirty Five and xx/100 Dollags ($13,935.00)
relative to matters addressed above regarding Mr. Churruca. Respondent shall also waive
any balance, if any, and withdraw any and all collection efforts, if any such efforts hate

6 been initiated. Payment of the $13,935.00 shall be made in twelve (12) equal monthly
payments. The first payment shall be made on the fifteen (15th) day of the month after

7 ~Qhich this Stipulation II is approved by the Board (for example, if this Stipulation II is

8 approved by the Board on November 10, then the first of the twelve equal monthlypayments shall be due on December 15). The remaining eleven equal payments shall then
9 be due on the fifteenth (1 5th) day of each month thereafter. Respondent shall deliver/mail

to the Board (6010 S. Rainbow Blvd., Suite Al, Las Vegas, Nevada 89118) payment
10 checks made payable to Jose Churruca.

0. Pursuant to NRS 631 .350(1)(l), Respondent agrees to reimburse Bill Krejei in the amount
12 of Six Thousand Four Hundred Forty-Five and xx/100 Dollars ($6,445.00) relative to

matters addressed above regarding Mr. Krejei. Respondent shall also waive any balance,
13 if any, and withdraw any and all collection efforts, if any suchefforts have been initiated.

14 Payment of the $6,445.00 shall be made in twelve (12) equal monthly payments. The first
payment shall be made on the fifteen (15th) day of the month after which this Stipulation

15 II is approved by the Board (for example, if this Stipulation II is approved by the Board
on November 10, then the first of the twelve equal monthly payments shall be due on

16 December 15). The remaining. eleven equal payments shall then be due on the fifteenth

17 (15th) day of each month thereafter. Respondeth shall deliver/mail to the Board (6010 S.
Rainbow Blvd., Suite Al, Las Vegas, Nevada 89118) payment checks made payable to

18 Bill Krejci.

19 P. Pursuant to NRS 631 .350(1)0), Respondent agrees to reimburse the estate of Brian

20 Banners in the amount of Seven Thousand Five Hundred Seventy and x)c/100 Dollars
($7,570.00) relative to matters addressed above regarding Mr. Banners. Respondent shall

21 also waive any balance, if any, and withdraw any and all collection efforts, if any such
efforts have been initiated. Payment Of the $7,570.00 shall be made in twelve (12) equal

22 monthly payments. The first payment shall be made on the fifteen (15th) day of the month

23 after which this Stipulation II is approvqd by the Board (for example, if this Stipulation II
is approved by the Board on November 10, then the first of the twelve equal monthly

24 payments shall be due on December 15). The remaining eleven equal payments shallthen

25 be due on the fifteenth (1 5th) day of each month thereafter. The actual name the paymentchecks/money orders are to made-out to for the benefit of the estate of Brian Banners will
26 be provided at a later date. Respondent shall deliver/mail the payments to the Board

(6010 S. Rainbow Blvd., Suite Al, Las Vegas, Nevada 89118).
27 {LV146063;l } -

Page 20 of 27
28~e~

~ Respondent’s mitials Respondent’s attorney’s itia
Las-Vegas, Nevada 89106 - -

Ph (702~l62.S300 - 7



I. ~ J r~.fl~T Fr . .1..~T .I~.l ...-——~f

1
Q. Pursuant to NRS 631.350(1)(1), Respondent agrees to reimburse Jan Thomas in the2 amount of Twelve Thousand Three Hundred Fift~’-Six and xx/lOO Dollars ($12,356.00)

3 relative to matters addressed above regarding Ms. Thomas. Respondent shall also waive
any balance, if any, and withdraw any and all collection efforts, if any such efforts have

4 been initiated. Payment of the $12,356.00 shall be made in twelve (12) equal monthly

5 payments. The first payment shall be made on the fifteen (15th) day of the month afterwhich this Stipulation II is approved by the Board (for example, if this Stipulation II is
6 approved by the Board on November 10, then the first of the twelve equal monthly

payments shall be due on December 15). Theremaining eleven equal payments shall then
7 be due on the fifteenth (1 5th) day of each month thereafter. Respondent shall deliver/mail

8 to the Board (6010 S. Rainbow Blvd., Suite Al, Las Vegas, Nevada 89118) paymentchecks made payable to Jan Thomas.
9

R. Pursuant to MRS 631 .350(1)(l), Respondent agrees to reimburse Mae McMahel in the
10 amount of Four Hundred Sixty-Eight and xx/100 Dollars ($468.00) relative to matters

addressed above regarding Ms. McMahel. Respondent shall also waive any balance, if
any, and withdraw any and all collection efforts, if any such efforts have been initiated.

12 Payment of the $468.00 shall be made in twelve (12) equal monthly payments. The first
payment shall be made on the fifteen (15th) day of the month after which this Stipulation

13 II is approved by the Board (for example, if this Stipulation II is approved by the Board

14 on November 10, thçn the first of the twelve equal monthly payments shall be due on
December 1 ~). The remaining eleven equal payments shall then be due on the fifteenth

15 (l5th) day of each month thereafter. Respondent shall deliver/mail to the Board (6010 S.
Rainbow Blvd., Suite Al, Las Vegas, Nevada 89118) pa~’ment checks made payable to

16 Mae McMahel.

17 5. Pursuant to MRS 631.350(1)0), Respondent agrees to reimburse Jacqueline Calvert in the

18 amount of Four Thousand Two Hundred Fifty and xx/1 00 Dollars ($4,250.00) relative to
matters addressed above regarding Ms. Calvett. Respondent shall alsà waive any balance,

19 if any, and withdraw any and all collection efforts, if any such efforts have been initiated.

20 Payment of the $4,250.00 shall be made in twelve (12) equal monthly payments. The first
payment shall be made on the fifteen (15th) day of the month after which this Stipulation

21 II is approved by the Board (for example, if this Stipulation II is approved by the Board
on November 10, then the first of the twelve equal monthly payments shall be due On

22 December 15). The remaining eleven equal payments shall then be d~e on the flfteeiflh

23 (15th) day of each month thereafter. Respondent shall deliver/mail to the Board (6010 S.
Rainbow Blvd., Suite Al, Las Vegas, Nevada 89118) payment checks made payable to

24 Jacqueline Calvert.

25 T. Pursuant to NRS 63 1.350(1)0), Respondent agrees to reimburse Jeremy Orenstein (on

26 behalf of Quinn Orenstein) in the amount of Four Thousand Seven Hundred Ninety-Two
and xxIlOO Dollars ($4,792.00) relative to matters addressed above regarding Quinn

27 {LV146063;1

Page 21 of 27
28Attl1~

~ ~ Respondent’s initials Respondent’s attorney’s
Las Vegas, Nevada 89106
Ph. (702) 862-8300

I



—- ......—1..,.... _••..••.•..I.- —.-.. —.-..—.. .....—- .... —1

1 Orenstein. Respondent shall also waive any balance, if any, and withdraw any and all
collection efforts, if any such efforts have been initiated. Payment of the $4,792.00 shall

2 be made in twelve (12) equal monthly payments. The first payment shall be made on the

3 fifteen (15th) day of the month after which this Stipulation II is approved by the Board
(for example, if this Stipulation II is approved by the Board on November 10, then the

4 first of the twelve equal monthly payments shall be due on December 15). The remaining

5 eleven equal payments shall then be due on the fifteenth (1 5th) day of each monththereafter. RespOndent shall deliver/mail to the Board (6010 S. Rainbow Blvd., Suite Al,
6 Las Vegas, Nevada 89118) payment checks made payable to Jeremy Orenstein.

7 U. Pursuant to NRS 631 .350(1)0), Respondent agrees to reimburse Jamie Grosjean in the

8 amount of Thirteen Thousand Five Hundred Seventeen and xxIlOO Dollars ($13,517.00)relative to matters addressed above regarding Ms. •Grosjean. Respondent shall also waive
9 any balance, if any, and withdraw any and all collection efforts, if any such efforts have

been initiated. Payment of the $13,517.00 shall be made in twelve (12) equal monthly
10 payments. The first payment shall be made on the fifteen (lStj day of the month after

11 which this Stipulation II is approved by the Board (for example, if this Stipulation II is
approved by the Board on November 10, then the first of the twelve equal monthly

12 payments shall be due on December 15). The remaining eleven equal payments shall then
be duç on the fifteenth (1 5th) day of each month thereafter. Respondent shall deliver/mail

13 to the Board (6010 S. Rainbow Blvd., Suite Al, Las Vegas, Nevada 89118) paythent

14 checks made payable to Jamie Grosjean.

15 V. Pursuant to NRS 631.350(1)0), Respondent agrees to reimburse Edward Harris in the
amount of Two Thousand Six Hundred Twenty-Four and xx/l00 Dollars ($2,624.00)

16 relative to matters addressed above regarding Mr. Harris. Respondent shall also waive

17 any balance, if any, and withdraw any and all collection efforts, if any such efforts have
been initiated. Payment of the $2,624.00 shall be made in twelve (12) equal monthly

18 payments. The first payment shall be made on the fifteen (l5tj day of the month after
which this Stipulation II is approved by the Board (for example, if this Stipulation II is

19 approved bS’ the Board on November 10, then the first of the twelve equal monthly

20 payments shall be due on December 15). The remaining eleven equal payments shall then
be due on the fifteenth (1 5th) day of each month thereafter. Respondent shall deliver/mail

21 to the Board (6010 5. Rainbow Blvd., Suite Al, Las Vegas, Nevada 89118) payment

22 checks made payable to Edward Harris.

23 W. In the event Respondent defaults on any of the payments set forth in Paragraphs 23K
thru 23V, Respondent agrees his license to practice dentistry in the State of Nevada may

24 be automatically be suspended without any further action of the Board other than

25 issuance of an Order of Suspension by the Bo~rd’s Executive Director. Subsequent to theissuance of the Order of Suspension, Respondent agrees to pay a liquidated damage
26 amount of Twenty Five and xx/lOO Dollars ($25.00) for each day Respondent is in

default on the payment(s) of any of the amounts set forth in Paragraphs 23K thru 23V
27 {LV146063;1}

Page 22 of27 • Al
28~~l~ 4\4/V

~ Respondent’s ii1itials Respondent’s attorney’s init4am
Las Vesas, Nevada 89106
Ph. (702) 862-8300



1 -C r ‘r --I -r .1

1 Upon curing the default of the applicable defaulted payment contained in Paragraphs
23K thrà 23V. and paying the reinstatement fee, Respondent’s license to practice

2 dentistry in the State of Nevada will automatically be reinstated by the Board’s Executor

3 Director, assuming there are no other violations by Respondent of any of the provisions
contained in this Stipulation Agreement. Respondent shall also be responsible for any

4 costs or attorney’s fees incurred in the event the Board has to seek injunctive relief to

5 prevent Respondent from practicing dentistry during the period in which his license issuspended. Respondent agrees to waive any right to seek injunctive relief from• any court
6 of competent jurisdiction, including a Nevada Federal District Court or a Nevada State

District Court to reinstate his license prior to curing any default on the amounts due and
7 owing as addressed above.

• 8 *X. In the event Respondent fails to cure any defaulted payments within forty-five (45) days
9 of the default, Respondent agrees the amount may be reduced to judgment.

10 Y. Respondent waives any right to have an~j amount(s) owed pursuant to this Stipulation

11 disehargedin bankruptcy.

12 CONSENT

13 24. Respondent has read all of the provisions contained in this Stipulation Agreement and

14 agrees with them in their entirety.

15

16 25. Respondent is aware by entering into this Stipulation Agreement she is waiving certain

17 valuable due process rights contained in, but not limited to, NRS 631, NAC 631? NRS 233B and

18 NAC233B.

19

20 26. Respondent expressly waives any right to challenge the Board for bias in deciding
whether or not to adopt this Stipulation Agreement in the event this matter was io proceed to a

21 flail Board hearing.

22

23 27. Respondent and the Board agree any statements and/or documentation made or

24 considered by the Board during any properly noticed open meeting to determine whether to

25 adopt dr reject this Stipulation Agreement are privileged settlement negotiations and therefore

26 such statements or documentation may not be used in any subsequent Board hearipg or judicial

27 {LV146063;1)
Page 23 of 27

28~~g~

500 S.Ra,ichO ~ Respondent’s initials Respondent’s attorney’s initial
LsVeg%NcvkE9IO6 - I
Ph. (702) 862-8300 ~



v--- ~ . .. —i” — ..

I review, whether or not judicial review is sought in either the State or Federal District Court.

2

28. Respondent acknowledges she has read this Stipulation Agreement. Respondent

4 acknowledges she has been advised she has the right to have this matter reviewed by
independent counsel and she has had ample opportunity to seek independent counsel.

6 Respondent has been specifically informed she should seek independent counsel and advice of
independent counsel would be in Respondent’ s best interest. Having been advised of her right to

independent counsel, as well as had the opportunity to seek independent counsel, Respondent
8 hereby acknowledges she is represented by ANTHONY LAURIA, ESQ. of the law firm

9 LAURIA TOKUNAGA GATES & LINN, LLP and EUGENE J. WAIT, JR., ESQ. of the WAIT

10 LAW FIRM and she has reviewed this Stipulation Agreement with same and understands its

11 terms and conditions.

12

13 29. Respondent acknowledges she is consenting to this Stipulation Agreement voluntarily,

14 without coercion or duress and in the exercise of her own free will.

15

16 30. Respondent acknowledges no other promises in reference to the provisions contained in

17 this Stipulation Agreement have been made by any agent, employee, counsel or any person
affiliated with the Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners.

18

19 31. Respondent acknowledges the provisions in this Stipulation Agreement contain the entire

20 agreement between Respondent and the Boa±d and the provisions of this Stipulation Agreement

21 can only be modified, in writing, with Board approval.

22

23 32. Respondent agrees in the event the Board adopts this Stipulation Agreement, she hereby

24 waives any and all rights to seek judicial review br otherwise to challenge or contest the validity

25 of the provisions contained herein.

26

27 33. Respondent and the Board agree none of the parties shall be deemed the drafter of this
Stipulation Agreement. In the event this Stipulation Agreement is construed by a court of law or

28

{L~I46063;1) Page 24 of 27
Morn, 1,1kb & Purdy, LU’
500 S. Rincho Drive Suite Il ii

Nevada Solos Respondent’s initials Respondent’s attorney’s initials -



...- .——r ~ I 9.’. ~ .-.—. 1~

1 equity, such court shall not construe it or any provision hereof agaffist any party as the drafter.

2 The parties hereby acknowledge all parties have contributed substantially and materially to the

3 preparation of this Stipulation Agreement.

4
34. Respondent specifically acknowledges by her signature herein and by her initials at the

6 bottom of each page of this Stipulation Agreement, she has read and understands its terms and
acknowledges she has signed and initialed of her own free will and without undue influence,

coercion, duress, or intimidation.
8

35. Respondent acknowledges in consideration of execution of this Stipulation Agreement,

10 Respondent hereby releases, remises, and forever discharges the State of Nevada, the Board, and

11 each of their members, agents, employees and legal counsel in their individual and representative

12 capacities, from any and all manner of actions, causes of action, suits, debts, judgments,

13 executions, claims, and demands whatsoever, known and unknown, in law or equity, that

14 Respondent ever had, now has, may have, or claim to have against any or all of the persons or

15 entities named in this section, arising out the complaint(s) of the above-referenced Patient(s).

16
36. Respondent acknowledges in the event the Board adopts this Stipulation Agreement, it

may be considered in any future Board proceeding(s) or judicial review, whether such judicial
18 review is performed by either the State or Federal District Court(s).

19

20 37. This Stipulation Agreement will be considered by the Board in an open meeting. It is

21 understood and stipulated the Board is free to accept or reject this Stipulation Agreement and if it

22 is rejected by the Board, the Board may take other andlor further action as allowed by statute,

23 regulatiop, and/or appropriate authority. This Stipulation Agreement will only become effective

24 when the Board has approved the same in an open meeting. Should the Board adopt this

25 Disciplinary Stipulation Agreement, such adoption shall be considered a final disposition of a

26

27

• 28

{LV]46063;1} Page 25 of 27
Morris PoIith & Purdy, LLP - • -

500 5. Ra,icho Drive, Sulie 17 — - -

L~çgs;s.~evada S9106 Respondent’s h~itia1s Respondent’s attorney’s initi~



——

‘B contested case and will become a public record and is reportable to the National Practitioner
Data Bank.

DATED this 3~ay of(3~Q~~C4-72~l4.

4

5

18

19

Morris P011th & Purdy IL?
500 S. Rincho Drive, Suite I?
Las VeEau Nevadu 89106
Ph. (702) 862-8300

Georgene~ Chase, DDS
Respondent.

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND CONTENT:

By . _

Eugene 3. Øit, Esci~
Wait Law Firm
Respondent’s Aftomey

APPROVED AS TO FORM AN]) CONTENT

By ~2 4 ~J~pg 4~
Anthony Lauria, Esq.
Lauria Tokunaga Gates & Linn, LLP
Respondent’s Attorney

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND CONTENT

ByQ~~ ~
Donna Jo Hellwinkel, DDS
Disciplinary Screening Office

2

3

72l~

~dthis / day of

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

APPROVE:

By

Board Counsel

____ ,20l4.

this 3’~day of~&~- ,2014.

this~.? dayofQC7~~4(’ ,2014.

3 dayof . ,2014.

Respondent’s attorney’s initials

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

{LVflOG$} Page 26 of 27

Respondent’s initials -



....... .. .. .. .. .. . 1 -.••••••• •. ~ fl~I~ ••. ~ . . —!

1 BOARD ACTION

2 This Disciplinary Stipulation llAgreetnent in the matter captioned as Nevada State Board

3
of Dental Examiners vs. Georgene B. Chase. DDS, case no. 74127-02697 was (check appropriate

4
action):•

5

6 Approved K’ Disapproved

7 by a vote of the Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners at a properly noticed meeting

8 DATED this ? day of ott , 2014.
9

10 ~onard,~en~
DDS - Presi11 NEVADA STATE BOARD OF DENTAL EXAMINERS

12

13
1-t\WDDOCS\3336\37520\LV145263 .DOCX

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

{LV~9O65j) Page 27 of 27
Morris Pouch & Purdy, LLP
$005. RsnchoDrive Suite 17 . ~ ‘ t~ _________

IstVegas,Ncvadas9IoG Respondent’s mitials Respondent’s attorney’s initials
Ph. (702) 862-8300



Dr. Craig S. Morris













Stipulation Agreement 
Approved 01/24/2014

Craig Morris, DDS







NEVADA STATE BOARD OF DENTAL EXAMINERS

NEVADA STATE BOARD OF

DENTAL EXAMINERS,

CASE NO: 15-74127-02457

Con~plainant, )

vs.

ORDER OF SUSPENSION

CRAIG S MORRIS, DDS

)
Respondent,

On January 24, 2014, you entered into a Disciplinary Stipulation Agreement with the Nevada

State Board of Dental Examiners. Pursuant to Paragraph 20(g) (II) you agreed to reimburse the

Board the cost of the investigation iii the amount of Twenty Four Thousand Fine Hundred Fifty

Dollars ($24,550.00) you agreed to twenty two (22) consecutive monthly payments in the

amount of $869.47. The payment of $869.47 due on May 1,2015 was not received.

Therefore, your failure to submit the required payments as set forth in Paragraph 20(g) (II)

and pursuant to Paragraph 20 (Ii) shall result in the issuance of an Order of Suspension. Please

be advised, effective immediately your license to practice dentistry in the State of Nevada is

hereby suspended. You shall cease and desist from practicing dentistry in the State of Nevada.

Should you practice dentistry in this state, such actions would be deemed as the illegal practice

of dentistry as set forth by NRS 631.395 and punishable crinunally to the provisions of NRS

631.400.

DATED tHs 13th day of May, E)~INERS

Nevada State Seal DEBRA HAFFER-KUGEL, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR



BEFORE THE NEVADA STATE BOARD OF DENTAL EXAMINERS

On January 24, 2014, at a properly notice meeting of the Nevada State Board of
Dental Examiners, the Disciplinary Stipulation Agreement you entered into with the Board was
adopted. Pursuant to Paragraph 20(e) you agreed to an additional ten (10) hours of
supplemental education in addition to the required continuing education for licensure renewaL
The ten (10) additional hours shall be completed within twelve (12) months from adoption of
the disciplinary stipulated agreement and must be completed in the following areas: Six (6)
hours related to anesthesia recordkeeping and Four (4) hours related to informed consent The
Board records show you have not submitted a request for approval of the required continuing
education and have not submitted certificates of completion.

Therefore, based upon your failure to comply with Paragraph 20(e) your license to practice
dentistry is hereby SUSPENDED effectively immediately. You shall cease and desist from
practicing dentistry in the State of Nevada. Should you practice dentistry in the State of
Nevada, such actions would be deemed as the illegal practice of dentistry as set forth by NRS
631.395 and punishable criminally to the provisions of NRS 631.400.

DATED this 30th day of January, 2015

NEVAD SkATE BOARD OF DENTAL EXAMINERS

DEB A SHAFFER-KUGEL, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

NEVADA STATE BOARD OF DENTAL
EXAMINERS,

Complainant,

vs.

Craig S Morris, DDS
Respondent,

ORDER OF SUSPENSION

15-74127-02457



1

2

5

24

STATE OF NEVADA

BEFORE TIlE BOAR]) OF DENTAL EXAMINERS

Case No. 74127-02457

DISCIPLiNARY
STIPULATION AGREEMENT

IT IS HEREBY STIPULATED AND AGREED by and between CRAIG S. MORRIS,

DDS (hereafter “Respondent” or “Dr. Morris”) present and represented by his counsel of record,

LISA RASMUSSEN, ESQ., and the NEVADA STATE BOARD OF DENTAL EXAMINERS

(hereafter “Board”), by and through THOMAS MYATT, DDS, Disciplinary Screening Officer

(“DSO”), and the Board’s legal counsel, JOHN A. HUNT, ESQ., of the law firm MORRIS,

POLICH & PURDY, LLP as follows via this Disciplinary Stipulation Agreement (“Stipulation

Agreement” or “Agreement”):

1NRS 629.061(5) and (6) provide as follows regarding health care records and their use in public hearings:
5. Records made available to a representative or investigator must not be used at any public hearing unless:

(a) The patient named in the records has consented in writing to their use; or

27

28
4orris PoHch & Pnrdy. LLP
00 5. Rancho Drive. Suite 17

Respondent’s initials

Page 1 of 19

Respondent’s Attorney’s initials

3

4

NEVADA STATE BOARD OF DENTAL
EXAMINERS,

Complainant,

vs.

CRAIG S. MORRIS, DDS,

Respondent.

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

1. On March 7, 2011, the Board received Respondent’s written notification dated March 4,

2011, regarding PATIENT A.1

25

26



2. Via notice dated May 23, 2011, the Board notified Respondent at
2 meeting on May 6, 2011, and pursuant to Agenda item 5(a)(l 1), it had auuiuazecl an

investigative complaint regarding whether Respondent violated NAC 631.2237 and NAC

631.155, relative to PATIENT A. On June 15, 2011, the Board received Respondent’s ~wiffen

response (w/attachments) dated June 8, 2011, in response to the notice of authorized
6 investigation relative to PATIENT A.

7

8 3. On July 2 and 3, 2012, the Board notified Respondent it had been brought to the Board’s

attention that a certain event thay have occurred at his office recently requiring reporting as set
10 forthinNAC63l.155.

11

12 On July 9, 2012, the Board notified Respondent it was in receipt of written notification

13
from Dr. Callaway-Nelson in accordance with NAC 631.155 of an occurrence on June 19, 2012,

14 at the office of Dr. Callaway-Nelson regarding Respondent’s patient, PATIENT B. The Board’s

15 . . .

July 9, 2012, correspondence also advised that the authorized mvestigation regarding PATIENT
16 A has been expanded, pursuant to NAC 63 1.250, to include PATIENT B.

17

18 5. On July 11, 2012, the Board received medical records of PATIENT A and PATIENT B

19 from AMR, copies of which were provided to Respondent on July 11, 2012. On July 11, 2012,

20 the Board received from the Office of the Coroner reports regarding PATIENT A, copies of

21

22

23 (b) Appropriate procedures are utilized to protect the identity of the patient from public disclosure.
6. Subsection 5 does not prohibit:

24 (a) A state licensing board from providing to a provider of health care or owner or operator of an
ambulance against whom a complaint or written allegation has been filed, or to his or her attorney, information on

25 the identity of a patient whose records may be used in a public hearing relating to the complaint or allegation, but
the provider of health care or owner or operator of an ambu]ance and the attorney shall keep the information

26 confIdential.

27 Page2ofl9

28 Respondent’s initials Respondent’s Attomey~s initials
orri, Pouch Sr Pardy, LU’
OS. Rancho Drive. Suite)?



~1çJv\. ______

28 Respondent’s initials

I

2

3

4

5

FEB 2014

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13!,

14

15

16

17

which were provided Respondent on July 12, 2012.

6. On July 16, 2012, the Board received conespondence from Respoi

20 12, regarding PATIENT B.

7. The Board received Respondent’s correspondence dated July 17, 2012, from Respondent

advising, in pertinent part:

Effective immediately, I hereby unconditionally relinquish my General
Anesthesia Permit #GA-021. It is understood the relinquishment of my General
Anesthesia Permit #GA-021 is not an adverse event reportable to the National
Practitioner Data Bank. I acknowledge in the event I should administer either
General or Conscious Sedation subsequent to the execution of this
correspondence such conduct may be deemed unprofessional conduct.

I understand in order to administer General Anesthesia in the future I must
reapply pursuant to NAC 631.2213 for a permit.

Id. (emphasis in original).

8. On July 24, 2012, the Board received from St. Rose Dominican Hospital records

regarding PATIENT A, copies of which were provided Respondent on July 24, 2012.

9. Via Notice of Investigative Complaint & Request for Records dated July 25, 2012, the

Board notified Respondent at a properly noticed meeting on July 18, 2012, and pursuant to

Agenda item 3(d)(2), it had authorized an investigative complaint regarding whether Respondent

violated NRS 631.3475(4), NAC 631.2237, NAC 63l.230(1)(c) and 1(k) (with reference to

PATIENT B).

10. On July 28, 2012, the Board received from the Office of the Coroner reports regarding

PATIENT B, copies of which were provided Respondent on July 30, 2012.

Page3ofl9 ,

Respondent’s Attorney’s initials

18

19

20

21

22!

23

24

25

26

27

orris Pouch & Pordy, LLP
OS, Rancho Drive, Suite I?



I

2 ii. oh August 3, 2012, the Board provided Respondent copies of medical re

from Centennial Hospital regarding PATIENT B.
4

12. On September 5, 2012, the Board sent Respondent correspondence regarding NAC
6~

6il.350 and the failure of a party to answer complaint.
7

8 13. On September 12, 2012, the Board received Respondent’s written response dated

September 10,2012, in response to the notice of authorized investigation regarding PATIENT B.
10

14. On February 8, 2013, the Board received additional material from Respondent dated
12 February 6,2013.

13

14 15. Via Notice of Complaint & Request for Records dated March 4, 2013, the Board notified

15 Respondent of a verified complaint brought on behalf of PATIENT A. On March 12, 2013, the

16 Board received Respondent’s written response dated March 8, 2013, to the verified complaint

17 brought on behalf of PATIENT A.

18

19 16. Based upon the limited investigation conducted to date, Disciplinary Screening Officer,

20 Thomas P. Myatt, DDS, applying the administrative burden of proof of substantial evidence as

21 set fo~h in State, Emp. Securi~ v. Hilton Hotel~ 102 Nev. 606, 608, 729 P.2d 497, 498 (l9~6);

22 and see Minton v. Board ofMedical Examiners, 110 Nev. 1060, 881 P. 2d 1339 (1994), see also

23 NRS 233B.135(3)(e), but not for any other purpose, including any other subsequent civil action,

24 believes there is substantial evidence Respondent violated NRS 63 1.3465(4) as follows regarding

25 PATIENT A:

26

27 Page4ofl9

28 Respondent’s initials Respondent’s Attorney’s initials
Iorfls P,Ileh It Purdy, LLP
ID S. Ranch, Drive, SuIte 17



a. Dr. Morris provided incomplete documentation of dec

anesthesia on PATIENT A. According to indicated AAOMS guidelines fegarding

therapeutic parameters for care it is recommended that patients be continuously

supervised, monitored and have documentation on at least a five minute interval

in the anesthetic record, including ventilation and oxygenation during the

administration of anesthesia, continuous pulse oximetry during both the

intraoperative and recovery period with appropriate alarm settings established,

and continuous monitoring of heart rate, blood pressure and respiration, with

EKG continuously displayed and/or recorded until the patient leaves the operation

room with written documentation of its use in the anesthetic record. Except for

preoperative vital signs, there is no written documentation regarding the above in

PATIENT A’s anesthetic record at five (5) minute intervals, as required. Dr.

Morris even indicates in his narrative that times were approximate.

b. Besides the failure to adequately record cardiovascular and respiratory vital signs

in the chart, there is no record of what time and/or spacing emergency drugs were

administered.

c. Dr. Morris failed to respond in a timely manner in calling EMS. From the time

that the patient regurgitated clear stomach fluid and aspirated prior to the time

EMS called, approximately 14 minutes had elapsed. Apparently 10 more minutes

transpired before EMS arrived and transported to the patient to the hospital. This

was approximately 25 minutes or more if these times are approximate before

EMS arrived at the scene. Dr. Morris notes that P02 saturations were in the mid

60’s /70’s for a period of 14 minutes, before EMS was notified.

d. In regards to the emergency algorithm for emesis and aspiration there is no

mention in Dr. Morris’ account that the patient was placed in Trendelenburg

Page 5 of 19
Mat

Respondent’s Attorney’s initials

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10;

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28
urns PDlich & Purdy, LLP
0 S Rantho Drive, Suite P

C.,S frk
Respondent’s initials



— ———-.———-—.—————————————

1

2

3

4,

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12;

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28
iris P011th & Purdy, LLP
S. Rarrcho Drive, Stitte I?

position with head down at least 15 degrees and rolled ion

that would have allowed gravity to help the aspirant move towards the pharynx

rather than down into the lungs. Although suetioning of the pharynx and

hypopharynx of the vomitus was indicated, lack of positioning could have

allowed the emesis to continue traveling to both right and left tracheal bron’ chial

trees.

e. In regard to the emergency algorithm for bronchospasm, this patient aspirated

clear stomach fluid causing signs similar to an acute asthma attack. These include

dyspnea, laryngospasm (partial airway obstruction), cyanosis and hypoxia. All

signs admitted to by Dr. Morris in his answer submitted to the Board.

The recommended treatment forrn an unresponsive patient who is having a

bronchospasm from aspiration is to give ephiephrine .3-.5 mg (1:1000 soln)

intramuscularly or subcutaneously and should the patient continued to deteriorate,

as Patient “A” continued to deteriorate the appropriate course of treatment is to

intubate the patient. Dr. Morris inappropriate course of treatment was to give

Patient “A” a cardiac dose (1mg) of epinephrine twice, which should be given

only if the patient is suspected to have an acute anaphylaxis and hypotension or

cardiac arrest. This was not the case, Patient “A” was in fact was having

bronchospasm secondary to aspiration, not acute anaphylaxis secondary to an

allergic reaction. In addition Dr. Morris’s attempts to intubate the patient twice

failed because Dr. Morris administered an incorrect dose of succinylcholine

(20mg given v 100-120 mg recommended). Failure to intubate Patient “A” by not

administering the appropriate dose of succinylcholine was a contributing faëtor

that resulted in Dr. Morris failure properly control the airway and oxygenate

Page6ofl9
Q,(~ fr\
Respondent’s initials Respondent’s Attorney’s initials



L ~-——-——---— —-.—--~~————--—-—--—-——---~——--— -—-

I Patient “A”.

2

17. Applying the administrative burden of proof of substantial evidence as sefltrfli in State,

Emp. Securi~ v. Hilton Hotels, 102 Nev. 606, 608, 729 P.2d 497, 498 (1986); and see Minton v.

Board of Medical Examiners, 110 Nev. 1060, 881 P. 2d 1339 (1994), see also ~S
6 233B. 135(3)(e), Respondent admits, but not for any other purpose, the Board h~ substantial

evidence that Respondent violated NRS 63 1.3475(4) and NAC 631.2225 as more filly addressed
8 in Paragraph 16 above regarding PATIENT A.

9

10 18. Based upon the limited investigation conducted to date, Disciplinary Screening Officer,

Thomas P. Myatt, DDS, applying the administrative burden of proof of substantial evidence as
12 set forth in State, Emp. Securi~’ v. Hilton Hotels, 102 Nev. 606, 608, 729 P.2d 497, 498 (1986);

13 and see Minton v. Board ofMedical Examine,~, 110 Nev. 1060, 881 P. 2d 1339 (1994), see also

14 NRS 233B.l35(3)(e), but not for any other purpose, including any other subsequent civil action,

believes there is substantial evidence Respondent violated NRS 631.3475(4) and NAC 631.2225
16 as follows regarding PATIENT B:

17 a. PATIENT B was a moderately obese (almost morbidly obese) 29 year old female

18 Hispanic who had acid reflux, seasonal allergies, and a childhood history of

19 Asthma. Contrary to Dr. Monis’ opinion that Patient “B” was “imldly obese” and

20 a ASA Classification II patient, disciplinary screening officer is of the opinion she

21 was a ASA Class III patient.

22
b. Dr. Moms anesthetic record did not conform to AAOMS standards and

23 .

reqmrements, nor did Dr. Moms anesthetic record conform to the NSBDE
24 Anesthesia dommittee requirements. These failures to conform include, but are

25 not limited to: no anesthesia, surgery, start times, or end times; incomplete vital

26

27 Page7ofl9
to 4

28 Respondent’s initials Respondent’s Attorney’s initials
orris Pouch & Purdy. LLP -

flR.hoDd.s.$okeI7



1 signs and monitoring of blood pressure, heart rate, oxygen s~

2 mifflm~ of eve~ 5 minutes; and no record of when 911 was called; no times the

emergency drugs were given; no vital signs when the emergency drugs were

given; no interval between drugs.

.c. The algorithm for difficult airway protocol was not followed csmpletely. In
6 retrospect, Dr. Morris should have attempted intubation with a laryngoscope.

Also in retrospect, the algorithm was not followed because no surgical emergency
8 intervention such as cricothyrotomy was attempted.

d. The algorithm for basis BLS for adult was not followed:
10 1. Unresponsive — no breathing or normal breathing.

11 2. Active emergency response system, in other words call 911.

12 3. Check pulse, was not followed. There was no pulse check at least for 10

13
mmutes until paramedics arrived, and 911 was not called for at least 10

14
mmutes.

15

16 19. Applying the administrative burden of proof of substantial evidence as set forth in State,

17 Emp. Securi~ v. Hilton Hotels, 102 Nev. 606, 608, 729 P.2d 497, 498 (1986); and see Minton v.

18 Board of Medical Examiners, 110 Nev 1060, 881 P. 2d 1339 (1994), see also Th~S

19 233B.135(3)(e), Respondent admits, but not for any other purpose, the Board has substantial

20 evidence that Respondent violated NRS 631.3475(4) and NAC 631.2225 as more fully addressed

21 in Paragraph 18 above regarding PATIENT B.

22

20. Based upon the limited investigation conducted to date, the findings of the Disciplinary
24 . , .

Screening Officer, Thomas P. Myatt, DDS, and the Respondent s admissions contained m
25 Paragraphs 17 (rc: PATIENT A) and 19 (re: PATIENT B) above, the parties have agreed to

26

27 Page8ofl9
c-cfrk. _______28 Respondent’s initials Respondent’s Attorney’s initials

urns PoHth & Purdy, LU
2 S. Rarucho Drive, Suite U
cveouc N.v,,~u XQSM



4

resolve the matters addressed above regarding two (2) authorized inves
2 complaint pursuaht to the following terms and conditions:

3
a. As referenced above in Paragraph 7, The Board received Respondent’s

correspondence dated July 17, 2012, from Respondent advising, in pertinent part:

5
Effective immediately, I hereby unconditionally relinquish

6 my General Anesthesia Permit #GA-02 1. It is understood
the relinquishment of my General Anesthesia Permit #GA
021 is not an adverse event reportable to the National

8 Practitioner Data Bank. I acknowledge in the event I
should administer either General or Conscious Sedation

9 subsequent to the execution of this corres~ondenbe such

10 conduct may be deemed unprofessional conduct.

11 I understand in order to administer General Anesthesia in
the future I must reapply pursuant to NAC 631.2113 for a

12 permit.

13 Rh (emphasis in original). Upon adoption of this Stipulation by the Board,

14 Respondent agrees to surrender his general anesthesia permit (GA-021) and site
permit pursuant to NAC 631.160. Respondent is prohibited from administering

15 conscious sedation, deep sedation or general anesthesia and Respondent shall not

• apply for permit(s) to administer conscious sedation, deep sedation, or general
anesthesia for a period of eighteen (18) months. Respondent is also required to

17 submit an informed consent form to the Board for approval and have same
approved by the Board and Respondent shall complete a program subject to the

18 approval of the Board of advanced training in anesthesiology and related

19 academic subjects beyond the level of undergraduate dental school.

20
Upon receipt of substantial evidence Respondent has administering conscious

21 sedation, deep sedation or general anesthesia without complying with the above

22 and without the appropriate permit(s) for the same, Respondent agrees his license
to practice dentistry in the State of Nevada shall be automatically revoked without

-23 any further action of the Board other than the issuance of an Order of Revocation
by the Executive Director. Thereafter, Respondent may request in writing a

24 hearing before the Board to reinstate Respondent’s license. However, prior to the

25 full Board hearing, Respondent waives any right seek judicial review, including

26

27 Page9ofl9

28 Respondent’s initials Respondent’s Attorney’s initials
orris P01kb & Purdy, LLP -

0 S. Ranch0 Drive. Suite 17
sVanas N.val, 09106

FEB 2014



4
FB a314

injunctive relief from either the Nevada Federal District Co
District Court to reiit~tate his privilege to practice dentistry in
pending a final Board hearing. Respondent shall also be responsible t~flhiy costs
or attorney’s fees incurred in the event the Board has to seek injunctive relief to
prevent Respondent from practicing dentistry during the period Respondent’s
license is automatically revoked.

b. Pursuant to NRS 63l.350(l)(d), Respondent’s dental practice shall be placed on
probation for a period of forty-eight (48) months from the adoption by the Board
of this Stipulation Agreement (sometimes referred to as “probationary period”).
During the forty-eight (48) months probationary period, Respondent shall allow
either the Executive Director of the Board and/or an agent appointed by the
Executive Director of the Board to inspect Respondent’s records during normal
business hours without notice and be provided copies of the billing and patient
records if reque~ted by the agent assigned by the Executive Director regarding
those patients who receive treatment during the probationary period to insure that
no patient has received either conscious sedation, deep sedation, and/or general
anesthesia without Respondent first complying with the provisions contained in
Paragraph 20.a. Respondent shall provide Oopies of requested patient records,
including but not limited to charts, billing and/or radiographs at Respondent’s
expense at the time of the inspection. During the above-referenced forty-eight
(48) months probationary period the agent assigned by the Executive Director
duties shall include, but not be limit to having unrestricted access to observe
Respondent performing conscious sedation, deep sedation, and/or general
anesthesia during normal business after Respondent has been issued a permit to
administer either conscious sedation, deep sedation, and/or genetal anesthesia
During the probationary period, the duties of the agent assigned by the Executive
Director shall include, but are not necessarily limited to, to contacting patients
who have received conscious sedation, deep sedation, and/or general anesthesia..

c. In the event Respondent no longer practices dentistry in the State of Nevada prior
to completion of the above-referenced forty-eight (48) months probationary
period, the probationary period shall be tolled. In the event the probationary
period is tolled because Respondent does not practice in the State of Nevada and
the terms and conditions of this Stipulation Agreement are nOt satisfied (i.e.,
including completion of the probationary period) within sixty (60) months of
adoption of this Stipulation Agreement by the Board, Respondent agrees his
license to practice dentistry in Nevada will be deemed voluntarily surrendered
with disciplinary action. Thereafter the Board’s Executive Director without any
flirther action or hearing by the Board shall issue an Order of Voluntary Surrender
with disciplinary action and report same to the National Practitioners Data Bank.

27

28
,rris Pouch & Purdy, LLP
I S. Rancho Drive, Suite 17
t Veoa& Nevada tgIflo

(5~ R
Respondent’s initials

Page 10 of 19
k3~n
I, iuiL~

Respondent’s Attorney’s initials

I

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26



I

2

3

4

5 i) Copy of the patients medical history

6 ii) Copy of pre-anesthetic evaluation and assessment
iii) Copy of anesthetic record

7

8 The daily anesthesia log shall be made available during normal busines~ hornswithout notice. Th addition a copy of the daily anesthesia log shall be mailed to the
9 Board office, no later than the fifth day of each preceding month during the

probationary period. Failure to maintain andlor provide the daily anesthesia log
10 upon request by an agent of the Board shall be an admission of unprofessional

II conduct. In addition failure to mail a copy of the daily anesthesia log by the fifth
day of each preceding month during the probatiofiary period shall be an admission

12 of unprofessional conduct. Upon receipt of, substantial evidence that Respondent
has either failed to maintain or has refused to provide the anesthesia file upon

13 requested by an agent, the agent assigned by the Executive Director; or

14 Respondent has refused to allow the agent assigned by the Executive Director to
observe Respondent admiflistering conscious sedation, deep sedation or general

is anesthetic; or Respondent has refused to provide copies of patient records
requested by the agent assigned by the Executive Director, Respondent agrees his

16 license to practice dentistry in the State of Nevada shall be automatically

17 suspended without any further action of the Board other than the issuance of an
Order of Suspension by the Executive Director. Thereafter, Respondent may

18 request in writing a hearing before the Board to reinstate Respondents’ license.
HQwever, prior to the full Board hearing, Respondent waives any right seek

19 judicial review, including injunctive relief from either the Nevada Federal District

20 Court or the Nevada State District Court to reinstate his privilege to practice
dentistry in the State of Nevada pending a final Board hearing, Respondent shall

21 also be responsible for any costs or attorney’s fees incurred in the event the Board
has to seek injunctive relief to prevent Respondent from practicing dentistry

22 during the period Respondent’s license is automatically suspended.

23

24 e. Pursuant to NRS 631.350(k), in additibn to completing the required continuing
education, Respondent shall obtain an additional ten (10) hours. of supplemental

25 education based upon the following hours:

26

27 Pagellofl9

28 Respondent’s initials Respondent’s Attorney’s initials
orris Pouch & Purdy, LU’
OS. Rss,cho Drive. Suite 17

d. During the above-referenced forty-eight (48) months probati’.
Respondent is practicing dentistry in the State of Nevada, aft
comply with Paragraph 20 (a), Respondent shall maintain a daily log coat ~ng
the following information for any patient(s) who receive conscious sedation, deep
sedation, and/or general anesthesia:



L.~,.. -_-_~~_.

F~2)14

1. Six (6) hours related to anesthesia recordkeeping.
2 2. Four (4) hours related to informed consent.

3
The supplemental education must be submitted in writing to the Executive

4 Director of the Board for approval prior to attendance. Upon the receipt of the
written request to attend the supplemental education the Executive Director of the
Board shall noti~’ Respondent in writing whether the requested supplemental

6 education is approved for attendance. Respondent agrees fifty (5 0%) percent of
the supplemental education in each category shall be completed through

7 attendance at live lecture and/or hand on clinical demonstration, which include in-

8 office education/training in record keeping and billing practices. The remainingfifty (50%) percent of the supplemental education in each category may be
9 completed through online/home study courses. The cost associated with this

supplemental education shall be paid by Respondent. All of the supplemental
10 education must be completed with twelve (12) months of the adoption of this

11 Stipulation Agreement by the Board. In the event Respondent fails to complete
the supplemental education set forth in paragraph 20.e., within twelve (12)

12 months of adoption of this Stipulation Agreement by the Board, Respondent
agrees his license to practice dentistry in the State of Nevada may be

13 automatically suspended without any fhrther action of the Board other than the

14 issuance of an Order of Suspension by the Executive Director. Upon Respondent
submitting written proof, of the completion of the supplemental education and

15 paying the reinstatement fee Respondent’s license to practice dentistry in the State
of Nevada will automatically be reinstated by the Executor Director of the Board,

16 , assuming there are no other violations of any of the provisions contained in this

17 Stipulation Agreement. Respondent agrees to waive any right to seek injunctive
relief from any Federal or State of Nevada District Court to prevent the automatic

18 suspension of Respondent’s license to practice dentistry in the State of Nevada
due to Respondent’s failure to comply with Paragraph 20.e. Respondent shall also

19 be responsible for any costs or attorney’s fees incurred in the event the Board has

20 to seek injunctive relief to prevent Respondent from practicing dentistry during
the period Respondent’s license is automatically suspended.

21
f. Respondent agrees to retake the jurisprudence test as required by NRS 631.240(2)

22 on the contents and interpretation of NRS 631 and the regulations of the Board.

23 ‘ Respondent shall have ninety (90) days, commencing upon the date of adoption of
this Stipulation by the Board, to complete the jurisprudence test. Respondent

24 upon adoption of this stipulation shall receive a user/name and password to enable

25 Respondent to access the online Jurisprudence Examination. In the eventRespondent fails to successfully complete the jurisprudence test within ninety
26

27 Pagel2ofl9

28 Respondent’s initials Respondent’s Attorney’s initials
6orris P01kb & Purdy, LLP
005. Ra,tcha Drive, Suite 17
as Vegas, Nevada 89106

4



1 (90) days of the date of adoption of this Stipulation by the
agrees his license to practice dentistry in the State of Nc

2 automatically suspended without any further action of the Board other than

3 issuance of an order by the Executive Director. Upon successthl completion of the
jurisprudence test, Respondent’s license to practice dentistry in the State of

4 Nevada will be automatically reinstated, assuming all other provisions of this

5 Stipulation are in compliance. Respondent agrees to waive any right to seekinjunctive relief from any Federal or State of Nevada District Court to prevent the

6 automatic suspension of Respondent’s license to practice dentistry in the State of
Nevada due to Respondent’s failure to comply with Paragraph 4.a. Respondent

7 shall also be responsible for any costs or attorney’s fees incurred in the event the

8 Board seeks injunctive relief to prevent Respondent from practicing dentistryduring the period Respondent’s license is automatically suspended.
9 -

10 g. Pursuant to NRS 622.400, Respondent agrees to reimburse the Board for the cost

11 of the investigation associated with the probationary period monitory addressed
above in this Stipulation Agreement in the amount of TWENTY-FOUR

12 THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED FIFTY DOLLARS and 00/100 Dollars
($24,550.00. All payments shall be made payable to the Nevada State Board of

13 Dental Examiners and mailed directly to 6010 S. Rainbow Blvd., Suite Al, Las

14 Vegas,Nevada 89118:

15 I. Respondent agrees the first payment in the amount of FOUR
THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED FIVTY and 00/100 dollars

16 ($4,550.00) is due within thirty (30) days from adoption of the

17 Stipulation Agreement;
II. Respondent agrees to submit on the first day of each month

18 thereafler for a period of 22 consecutive months, the sum of
EIGHT HUNDRED SIXTY NINE and 57/00 dollars ($869.47);

19 and

20 III. Respondent agrees to submit the final payment due on the first day
of the final month, in the amount of EIGHT HUNDRED SIXTY

21 NINE and 47/00 ($869.47).

22 h. In the event Respondent defaults on any of the payments set forth in Paragraph

23 20.g. Respondent agrees his license to practice dentistry in the State of Nevada
may be automatically be suspended without any further action of the Board other

24 than issuance of an Order of Suspension by the Executive Director. Subsequent

25 to the issuance of the Order of Suspension, Respondent agrees to pay a liquidateddamage amount of Twenty Five and xx!100 Dollars ($25.00) for each day
26

27 Pagel3ofl9

28 Respondent’s initials Respondent’s Attorney’s initials
torn, Pouch & Purdy, LLP
00 5. Ra,cho Drive, Suite 17
as Vegas Nevada 89106



4:4%
tlzT

R~BZI14
tJ~i1 Respondent is in default on the payment(s) of any of the wlaounts scriorth

Paragraph 20.g. Upon curing the default of the applicable 4aylted paragr~43/
2 20.g., and paying the reinstatement fee, Respondent’s license~

3 in the State of Nevada will automatically be reinstated by the Executdi9Director of
the Board, assuming there are no other violations of any of the provisions

4 contained in this Stipulation Agreement. Respondent shall also be responsible for
any costs or attorney’s fees incurred in the event the Board has to seek injunctive
relief to prevent Respondent from practicing dentistry during the period in which

6 her license is suspended. Respondent agrees to waive any right to seek injunctive
relief from either the Nevada Federal District Coult or the Nevada State District

7 Court to reinstate his license prior to curing any default on the amounts due and

8 owing.

9 i. In the event Respondent fails to cure any defaults in payment within forty-five
(45) days of the default, Respondent agrees the amount may be reduced to

10 judgment.

11 j. Respondent waives any right to have the amount owed pursuant to paragraphs

12 20.g., and/or 20.i. discharged in bankruptcy.

13 k. During the above-referenced forty-eight (48) months probationary period wherein

14 Respondent is practicing dentistry in the State of Nevada, Respondent shall renew
annually (during each of the four (4) years of the probationary period) in Basic

15 Life Support for Healthcare providers and Respondent shall also complete eight
(8) hours of continuing education annually (during each of the four (4) years of

16 probationary period) in the area of Management of Medicñl Emergencies.

17 With regards to the (8) hours of continuing education in the area of Managethent

18 of Medical Emergencies, information regarding the same must be submitted in
writing to the Executive Director of the Board for approval prior to attendance.

19 Upon the receipt of the written request to attend the continuing education, the

20 Executive Director of the Board shall notif~’ Respondent in writing whether the
requested continuing education in the area of Management of Medical

21 Emergencies is approved for attendance. Respondent agrees fifty (50%) percent
of the continuing education referenced in paragraph 20.k. shall be completed

22 through attendance at live lecture and!or hand on clinical demonstration and the

23 remaining fifty (50%) percent may be completed through online/home study
courses.

24

25 The cost associated with the annual renewal in Basic Life Support for Healthcareproviders and the continuing education in the area of Management of Medical
26

27 Page 14 of 19
(1 ____

28 Respondent’s initials Respondent’s Attorney’s initials
rris Pouch & Purdy. LLP
S. R,ncheDHvc. Suke 17
VcgastevadaSglfl6
r,n,~ Rc~_u,nn



Emergencies during the probationary period as referenced

2 20.k. shall be the responsibility of Respondent.

3 Respondent shall complete and provide evidence/documentation he has
successfully completed the annual renewal in Basic Life Support for Healthcare

4 providers and the continuing education in the area of Management of Medical
Emergencies to the Board by the following due dates for the four (4) year
probationary period:

6
For year one: on or before June 30, 2014

7 For year two: on or before June 30, 2015

8 For year three: on or before June 30, 2016
For year four: on or before June 30, 2017

9
Respondent agrees that should he fail to comply with paragraph 20.k.’s

10 requirements as more fully noted above, Respondent agrees his license to practice

11 dentistry in the State of Nevada may be automatically suspended without any
further action of the Board other than the issuance of an Order of Suspension by

12 the Executive Director. Upon Respondent submiffing written proof of the
compliance with paragraph 20.k. and paying the reinstatement fee Respondent’s

13 license to practice dentistry in the State of Nevada will automatically be reinstated

14 by the Executor Director of the Board, assuming there are no other violations of
any of the provisions contained in this Stipulation Agreement. Respondent agrees

15 to waive any right to seek injunctive relief from any Federal or State of Nevada
District Court to prevent the automatic suspension of Respondent’s license to

16 practice dentistry in the State of Nevada due to Respondent’s failure to comply

17 with Paragraph 20.k. Respondent shall also be responsible for any costs~ or
attorney’s fees incurred in the event the Board has to seek injunctive relief to

18 prevent Respondent from practicing dentistry during the period Respondent’s

19 license is automatically suspended.

20
CONSENT

21 21. Respondent has read all of the provisions contained in this Stipulation Agreement and

22
agrees with them in their entirety.

23

24 22. Respondent is aware by entering into this Stipulation Agreement he is waiving certain

25 valuable due process rights contained in, but not limited to, NRS 631, NAC 631, NRS 23 3B and

26

27 PagelSofl9

28 Respondent’s initials Respondent’s Attorney’~ initials
orris Polich & Purdy, 11EV
C S. Raocho DHve, Suite 17

Vegas Nevada 89106
(7fl2~ Rc,_e,nn



1 NAC233B.

2

23. Respondent expressly waives any right to cha11ë~grTh7e Board for bias in deciding

whether or not to adopt this Stipulation Agreement in the event this mater was to proceed to a

full Board hearing.

6
24. Respondent and the Board agree any statements and/or documentation made or

considered by the Board during any properly noticed open meeting to determine whether to
8 adopt or reject this Stipulation Agreenient are privileged settlement negotiations and therefore

such statements or documentation may not be used in any subsequent Board hearing or judicial

10 review, whether or not judicial review is sought in either the State or Federal District Court.

11

12 25. Respondent has reviewed the Stipulation Agreement with his attorney, LISA

13 lt~SMUSSEN, ESQ., who has explained each and every provision contained in this Stipulation

14 Agreement to the Respondent.

15

16 26. Respondent acknowledges he is consenting to this Stipulation Agreement voluntarily,

17 without coercion or duress and in the exercise of his own free will.

18

19 27. Respondent acknowledges no other promises in reference to the provisions contained in

20 this Stipulation Agreement have been made by any agent, employee, counsel or any person
affiliated with the Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners.

21

22 28. Respondent acknowledges the provisions in this Stipulation Agreement contain the entire

23 agreement between Respondent and the Board and the provisions of this Stipulation Agreement

24 can only be modified, in writing, with Board approval.

25

26 29. Respondent agrees in the event the Board adopts this Stipulation Agreement, he hereby

27 waives any and all rights to seek judicial review or otherwise to challenge or contest the validity

28

- Pagel6ofl9 ,, ~

~ 2~’ ___________

sVcga~ Nevada 89106 Respondent’s initials Respondent’s Attorney’s initials



1 of the provisions contained herein.

2

30. Respondent and the Board agree none of the parties shall be deemL [5

~ Stipulation Agreement. In the event this Stipulation Agreement is construed by a court of law or
equity, such court shall not construe it or any provision hereof against any party as the drafter.

6 The parties hereby acknowledge all parties have contributed substantially and materially to the
preparation of this Stipulation Agreement.

7

8 31. Respondent specifically acknowledges by his signature herein and by his initials at the

bottom of each page of this Stipulation Agreement, he has read and understands its terms and

10 acknowledges he has signed and initialed of his own free will and without undue influence,

11 coercion, duress, or intimidation.

12

13 32. Respondent acknowledges in consideration of execution of this Stipulation Agreement,

14 Respondent hereby releases, remises, and forever discharges the State of Nevada, the Board, and

15 each of their members, agents, employees and legal counsel in theft individual and representative

16 capacities, from any and all manner of actions, causes of action, suits, debts, judgments,
executions, claims, and demands whatsoever, known and unknown, in law or equity, that

Respondent ever had, now has, may have, or claim to have against any or all of the persons or
18 entities named in this section, arising out the Authorized Investigations regarding Patients “A”

19 and”B”.

20

21 33. Respondent acknowledges in the event the Board adopts this Stipulation Agreement, it

22 may be considered in any future Board proceeding(s) or judicial review, whether such judicial

23 review is performed by either the State or Federal District Court(s).

24

25 34. This Stipulation Agreement will be considered by the Board in an open meeting. It is

26 understood and stipulated the Board is free to accept or reject this Stipulation Agreement and if it

27 is rejected by the Board, the Board may take other and/or fbrther action as allowed by statute,

28

Pagel7ofl9
~ ~ W\~ __________

is7~g~Nevada891O6 Respondent’s initials Respondent’s Attorney’s initials



of

tlii& Vday of ,2014.

Thomas P. Myatt, DDS
this

Page 18 of 19

1

61

regulation, and/or appropriate authority. This Stipulation Agreement will only become effective

when the Board has approved the same in an open meeting. Should the Board adopt this

Stipulation Agreement, such adoption shall be considered a final disposition of a contested case

and will become.a public record and shall be reported to the National Practitioner Data Bank.

DATED this day of__________7’

___________ 2014.

Ii

1

Craig S. Morris,

S
FEB 2814

Respondent

14

APPROVED AS TO FORM AN]) CONTENT

B(~A/
L1saRM~nussdn, Esq)~-’

1

1

1

/,t~i iat-Ze-7

Attorney for Respondent, Craig S. Morris, DDS

this ____ day

1

A0l4.

21

Counsel
LLP

By

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND CONTENT

Disciplinary Screening Office

28

Pouch &

dayof______________ ,2014.

Respondent’s initials ResDondent’s Attorney’s fn~tfa1s



I

Stipulation Agreement, such adoption shall be

1

I

I

1

1

1

1

bATED this day of

____________ 2014.

Craig S. Morris,
Respondent

AND CONTENT

2’

2

‘ouch & Purdy, LLP
Counsel

APPROVED AS T~ FORM AND CONTENT

By 4h1’V~ /~21aI1i~21J this
Thomas P. Myatt, PD
Disciplinary Screening Office

thi&≤1Y’day of ______________,2014.

3{day of

lords Polkh &

as Vegss,Noya~a 8P~06
(702) 262-2)00

x (702) 862-2400
wwnsppIow corn

CSM
Respondent’s initials

Page 18 ofl9

Respondent’s Attorney’s initials

regulation, and/or appropriate authority. This Stipulation Agreement will only become effective

when the Board has approved the same in an open meeting. Should the Board adopt this

considered a final disposition of a contested case

and will become a public record and shall be reported to the National Practitioner

LA 2014

APPROVED AS TO

this ~~day of .2014.

2014.
U



by a vote of the Nevada State Board of DentaJ Examiners at a properly noticed meeting.
4-

DATEDIhIs 5 dayof F~4 Z014.

J. Gordon Kiliird, DDS - President
NEVADA STATE BOARD OF DENTAL EXAMINERS

13

14

1~5

16

I 7~

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

H:~WDDO336Ufl54UrvIjo7.zo;Do~ ~Vu~2~-— —-j-.— -..-—--—-

27

28

Page 19 of 19

BOARD ACTIONI

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

•11

12

This Disciplinaty Stz~ulation Agreement in the matter captioned as Nevada State Board

ofDental Examiners vs. Craig S. Morris, DDS. case no- 74127-02457 was:

Approved Disapproved__________

forflshfltb&P,rdy.LJ)
DOS k.itSoD~4whk. I?



1

2

3

4;

5

6

7

Approved___________ Disapproved

by a vote of the Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners at a properly noticed meeting.

10

12

13

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

DATED this ____ day of 2014.

fl:\WDD0C5\3336\35854\Lvl 10720.DQCX (Ver2)

S. Gordon Kinard, UPS - President
NEVADA STATE BOARD OF DENTAL EXAMTNERS

23

24

25

26

27

28

oreis Poitci, & Purdy, LLP
08. Ranclto Drive. Suite 17

Vegas Nevada 89106
• (702) 862-8300 Respondent’s initials

Page 19 of 19
n [1

I , \

Respondent’s Atibmey’ s initials

BOARD ACTION

This Disciplinary Stzj,ulation Agreement in the matter captioned as Nevada State Board

of Dental Examiners vs. Craig S. Morris, DDS, case no. 74127-02457 was:

9

11

14


	Blank Page
	Georgene Chase - All Docs for Mtg_Redacted.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	Blank Page
	Blank Page



